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NOTICE 
Notice is hereby given that the Thirty-Two (32nd) Annual General Meeting of the Members of the Company will be held 
on Monday, September 30, 2024 at 9:00 a.m. through video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”), 
to transact the following business:  

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

	 1.	 To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024 and the Profit & Loss Account 
for the year ended as on that date and the Reports of Auditors and Directors thereon.

	 2.	 To re-appoint Mr. Gokul Naresh Tandan, Director who retires by rotation and being eligible, has offered himself 
for reappointment.

	 3.	 To appoint M/s Rajesh Raj Gupta & Associates LLP., Chartered Accountants (FRN: 026338N/N500357) as 
Statutory Auditor of the Company.

	 	 To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution: 

		  “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 139, Section 142, and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, including any statutory modification(s) or reenactment(s) 
thereof for the time being in force, approval of the Members of the company be and is hereby accorded to 
appoint M/s. Rajesh Raj Gupta & Associates LLP., Chartered Accountants (FRN: 026338N/N500357), as the 
Statutory Auditor of the Company for a period of 5 years commencing from the conclusion of this Annual General 
Meeting till the conclusion of 37th Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2029, on such remuneration 
as may be recommended by Audit Committee and mutually agreed upon by the Board of the company and 
the Auditors.” 

		  “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds, 
matters and things and take all such steps as may be deemed necessary, proper, expedient or desirable for 
the purpose of giving effect to this resolution and for matters connected therewith or incidental thereto.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

	 4.	 APPROVAL OF MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS.

		  “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 2(1) (zc), 23(4) and other applicable Regulations, 
if any, of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (‘SEBI Listing Regulations’), as amended from time to time, Section 2(76) and other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with the Rules framed thereunder [including 
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force] and other applicable 
laws / statutory provisions, if any, the Company’s Policy on Related Party Transactions as well as subject to 
such approval(s), consent(s) and/or permission(s), as may be required and based on the recommendation 
of the Audit Committee, consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board 
of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Board’, which term shall be deemed to include 
the Audit Committee or any other Committee constituted / empowered / to be constituted by the Board from 
time to time to exercise its powers conferred by this Resolution) to the Material Related Party Transaction(s) / 
Contract(s) / Arrangement(s) / Agreement(s) entered into / proposed to be entered into (whether by way of an 
individual transaction or transactions taken together or a series of transactions or otherwise), as mentioned in 
detail in the Explanatory Statement annexed herewith, for the following arrangements/ transactions/ contracts 
(including any other transfer of resources, services or obligations) to be entered into by the Company for the 
financial year 2024-25 “
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          Details of Related Party Transactions/ Arrangements/ Contracts per Financial Year

S. No	 Name of Related Party	 Nature of Relationship	 Type of Transaction(s)	 Maximum Value of
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 Transaction for Financial
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 Year

1.	 	 Mr. Gokul Naresh 	 Chairman and 	 	 Receipt of Unsecured	 As required not	 	
Tandan	 	 Managing Director	 Loan from him and	 exceeding INR

								        thereon			   10,00,00,000 (Ten Crore)
								      

2.	 	 Empyrean Spirits	 Subsidiary	 	 Receipt of Unsecured	 As required not exceeding INR
	 	 Private Limited	 	 	 	 	 Loan from him and	 10,00,00,000 (Ten Crore)
								        thereon
								      

	 5.	 CONTINUATION OF MR. GOKUL NARESH TANDAN (DIN:00441563) AS MANAGING DIRECTOR (EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTOR) UPON ATTAINING AGE OF SEVENTY YEARS

	 	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special Resolution:
	 	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to section 196(3) read with Schedule V and other applicable provisions, if any, of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), consent of the 
Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for continuation of holding of office of Managing Director by 
Mr. Gokul Naresh Tandan (DIN: 00441563) upon attaining the age of 70 (Seventy) years on 25th March 2024, on 
the existing terms and conditions duly approved in the Annual General Meeting through a Special Resolution passed 
on 28 September, 2020.” 

	 	 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT save and except as aforesaid, the Special Resolution approved and passed by the 
Members in the Annual General Meeting dated 28 September, 2020 with respect to the appointment of Mr. Gokul 
Naresh Tandan, as Managing Director shall continue to remain in full force and effect till the continuance of his term 
as per Resolution passed dated 28th September 2020.” 

	 	 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby 
severally authorized to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect 
to this resolution”.

	 6.	 APPROVAL FOR NAME CHANGE OF COMPANY

	 	 To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a SPECIAL RESOLUTION:

	 	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 13, 14, and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made thereunder, Regulation 45 and other applicable provisions, if any, of 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 (including any statutory modification(s) 
or re-enactment(s), thereof for the time being in force) and subject to the approval(s)/ consent(s) or permission(s) 
of the Stock Exchanges, Ministry of Corporate affairs, Central Government and any other regulatory and statutory 
authorities, as may be required, the consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to change 
the name of the Company from “VirtualSoft Systems Limited to “Kati Patang Collective Limited” or any other name 
as may be decided by the board “

	 	 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Name Clause being Clause I in the Memorandum of Association of the Company be 
altered accordingly and substituted by the following clause: “

	 I. 	 The name of the Company is “Kati Patang Collective Limited” or any other name as may be decided by the board.” 
	 	 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT upon receipt of fresh Certificate of Incorporation consequent upon change of name, 
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the old name, i.e. “Virtualsoft Systems Limited” be substituted with the new name, i.e. “Kati Patang Collective 
Limited” in the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and be deemed substituted in all other 
relevant documents including agreements, deeds, documents, contracts wherein the Company is a party or interested, 
common seal and at all other places wherever appearing. 

	 	 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director and Company Secretary of the Company, be and is hereby severally 
authorized to do all such acts, deeds and actions as it may, in its absolute discretion, consider necessary, expedient, 
usual, proper or incidental for giving effect to this Resolution, and to settle questions, remove any difficulty or doubt 
that may arise from time to time and to take such actions or give such directions as may be necessary or desirable 
and to obtain any approvals, permissions or sanctions which may be necessary or desirable, as it may think fit.

By Order of the Board of Directors 
Sd/-
Gokul Naresh Tandan
Managing Director 
September 03, 2024
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NOTES: 

	 1.	 In view of the continuing Covid-19 pandemic and social distancing norms to be followed, the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs (“MCA”) has vide its circular dated May 5, 2023 read with circulars dated April 8, 2023 and April 13, 2023 
(collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”) permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) through 
VC / OAVM, without the physical presence of the Members at a common venue. In compliance with the provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI 
Listing Regulations”) and MCA Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being held through VC / OAVM.

	 2.	 A statement giving relevant details of the directors seeking appointment/ reappointment under Item No. 3 and 4 of 
the accompanying notice, as required under SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 is annexed herewith as Annexure-I.

	 3.	 Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a 
proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a Member of the Company. In terms of MCA 
Circulars, since physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with, there is no requirement of appointment 
of proxies. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members under Section 105 of the Act, will not 
be available for the AGM and, hence, the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice. The Board 
of Directors has appointed Mr. Sanjeev Kumar Jha, Practicing Company Secretary (FCS No. 8690, CP No. 9870) 
as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the voting and remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

	 4.	 Corporate members intending to attend the AGM through authorized representatives are requested to send a scanned 
copy of duly certified copy of the board or governing body resolution authorizing the representatives to attend and 
vote at the Annual General Meeting. The said Resolution/Authorization shall be sent to the Scrutinizer by email 
through its registered email address to cssanjeevjha@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in.

	 5.	 Members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under 
Section 103 of the Act.

	 6.	 Explanatory Statement as required under Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 is annexed.
	 7.	 Members can login and join the AGM 30 minutes prior to the scheduled time to start the AGM and the window 

for joining shall be kept open till the expiry of 15 minutes after the scheduled time to start the AGM. The facility of 
participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1000 members, on first-come-first-served basis. 
However, the participation of large members (members holding 2% or more shareholding), promoters, institutional 
investors, directors, key managerial personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee and Auditors can attend the AGM without restriction of first-come-
first served basis. Instructions and other information for members for attending the AGM through VC/OAVM are given 
in this Notice.

	 8.	 The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from September 24, 2024 
to September 30, 2024 (both days inclusive).

	 9.	 Members are requested to kindly notify the change of address, if any to the Company/ the Registrar / Depository 
Participant.

	 10.	 In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular dated May 12, 2023, Notice of the AGM along with 
the Annual Report 2023-24 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses 
are registered with the Company/ Depositories. Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report 2023-24 will 
also be available on the Company’s website www.virtsoft.com, websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited at 
www.bseindia.com.

	 11.	 The Company has appointed Mr. Sanjeev Kumar Jha, Practicing Company Secretary holding CP No: 9870 as the 
Scrutinizer for conducting the e-voting process in fair and transparent manner.

	 12.	 In terms of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the applicable provisions, the shareholders of the Company 
may nominate a person in whose name the shares held by him/them shall vest in the event of his/their death.  
Shareholders desirous of availing this facility may submit the requisite nomination form.

	 13.	 Any member requiring further information on the Accounts at the meeting is requested to send the queries in writing 
to CFO, at email id athar@virtsoft.com at least one week before the meeting.

	 14.	 The documents referred to in the proposed resolutions are available for inspection at its Registered Office of the 
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Detailed procedure is given in the enclosed letter.  
INSTRUCTION FOR REMOTE EVOTING, EVOTING AND JOINING OF AGM THROUGH VIDEO CONFERENCING 
(i)	 The shareholders need to visit the e-voting website of NSDL http://www.evoting.nsdl.com /.
(ii)	 Click on “Shareholders” module.
(iii)	 Now enter your User ID 
a.	 For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 
b.	 For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID, 
c.	 Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.
(iv)	 Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.
(v)	 If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evoting.nsdl.com and voted on an earlier e-voting of 

any company, then your existing password is to be used. 
(vi)	 If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

Company during normal business hours on any working day except Saturdays, up to the date of meeting.
	 15.	 SEBI has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. 

Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their Depository Participants 
with whom they are maintaining their demat account. Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN 
to the Company/Registrar. 

	 16.	 Members who hold shares in multiple folios in identical names or joint holding in the same order of names are 
requested to send the share certificates to the Registrar, for consolidation into a single folio.  

	 17.	 In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular dated May 12, 2023, the Annual Report including 
audited financial statements for the financial year 2024 including notice of 32nd AGM is being sent only through 
electronic mode to those Members who have not registered their e-mail address so far are requested to register their 
e-mail address for receiving all communication including Annual Report, Notices, Circulars, etc. from the Company 
electronically.

            In case you have not registered your email id with depository or RTA you may registered your email id in following manner.

	 Physical Holding	 Send a signed request to Registrar and Transfer Agents of the Company, MAS Services 
Limited at investor@masserv.com providing Folio number, Name of the shareholder, 
scanned copy of the share certificate (Front and Back), PAN (Self attested scanned copy 
of PAN Card), AADHAR ( Self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) for registering 
email address.

	 Demat Holding	 Please contact your Depositary Participant (DP) and register your email address as 
per the process advised by DP.

18.	 Voting through electronic means:
(1)	 In compliance with the provisions of Regulation 44 of the Listing Regulations and Pursuant to the provisions of Section 

108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 
Company is offering e-voting facility to its members.

(2)	  The remote e-voting period begins on Friday, September, 27, 2024 at 9:00 A.M. and ends on Sunday, September, 29, 
2024 at 5:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose 
names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e., Monday, September 
23, 2024, may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the 
paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being Monday, September 23, 2024.
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		  For Shareholders holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form
PAN		 Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable 

for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

	 	 ● Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant 
are requested to use the sequence/PAN number which is mentioned in email.

	 	 Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as 	 	 	
recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to login.

	 	 ●	If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please enter
	 	 the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field as mentioned in 	 	 	

instruction.
		

Dividend Bank 
Details
OR
Date of Birth (DOB)

(vii)	 After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.
(viii)	 Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However, 

shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to 
mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is also to be used 
by the demat holders for voting on resolutions of any other company for which they are eligible to vote, provided 
that the company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password 
with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

(ix)	 For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for remote e-voting on the resolutions 
contained in this Notice.

(x)	 Click on the EVSN for the Virtualsoft Systems Limited. 
(xi)	 On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same, the option “YES/NO” for 

voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option 
NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

(xii)	 Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.
(xiii)	 After selecting the resolution on which you have decided to vote, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be 

displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly 
modify your vote.

(xiv)	 Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.
(xv)	 You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page.
(xvi)	 If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image verification code 

and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.
(xvii)	Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app “m-Voting”. The m-Voting app can be downloaded 

from respective Store. Please follow the instructions as prompted by the mobile app while Remote Voting on your 
mobile.

	PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHO WISH TO OBTAIN LOGIN CREDENTIALS FOR E-VOTING FOR 
THE RESOLUTIONS PROPOSED IN THIS NOTICE BUT WHOSE EMAIL ADDRESSES ARE NOT REGISTERED 
WITH THE DEPOSITORIES:
1.	 For Physical shareholders- Kindly send an email with a scanned request letter duly signed by 1st shareholder, 

scan copy of front and back of one share certificate, copy of PAN card and Aadhar card to  info@masserv.
com

2.	 For Demat shareholders - Kindly update your email id with your depository participant and send copy of client 
master to info@masserv.com
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	 INSTRUCTIONS FOR JOINING MEETING THROUGH VC:

(i)	 To join the meeting, the shareholders should log on to the e-voting website http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ and 
login as explained above. After logging-in, kindly click on ‘live streaming’ tab and you will be redirected to 
‘cisco’ website.

	 In the “Name” field                  -  Put your USERID as informed in e-email..
	 In the “last name” field            -  Enter your Name 
	 In the “Email ID” field              -  Put your email ID
	 In the “Event password” field  -  Put the password
	 Click join now button.
	 Now screen will be displayed for downloading CISCO driver for VC.  Please click on run temporary file download
	 Downloading of driver will be start open driver and click on run. 
	 Event will start and you will be in the AGM through Video conferencing.
	 You can join meeting through laptop, tablet, and desktop. In case you want to join through mobile, you ne
	 to download the webex meet app from the respective play store .

PRE-REQUISITE FOR JOINING OF MEETING THROUGH DESKTOP OR LAPTOP:
1.	 System requirement:
•	 Windows 7, 8 or 10  
•	 I3 
•	 Microphone, speaker 
•	 Internet speed minimum 700 kbps
•	 Date and time of computer should be current date and time

PRE-REQUISITE FOR JOINING OF MEETING THROUGH MOBILE:
•	 Please download webex application from play store
	 	NOTE:IT IS ADVISABLE TO LOGIN BEFOREHAND AT E-VOTING SYSTEM AS EXPLAINED IN E-VOTING 

INSTRUCTIONS ABOVE,TO BE FAMILIAR WITH THE PROCEDURE, SO THAT YOU DO NOT FACE ANY 
TROUBLE WHILE LOGGING-INDURING THE AGM.

PROCEDURE FOR E-VOTING AND JOINING OF MEETING THROUGH VC  (EXPLAINED USING SCREENSHOTS):
i.	 The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website http://www.evoting.nsdl.com /.
	 Below screen will be appear.
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ii.	 Press Shareholders/Members tab, after which the below screen will be appear.

iii.	 Enter user id as mentioned in your invite email, or read point number (iii) as given above.
	 Since you are a registered user, below screen will be appear. Enter your existing CDSL password in password field. 
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iv.	 In case you are 1st time user of CDSL e-voting system, then below screen will be appear.

v.	 Enter your PAN and bank detail/DOB or follow instruction as given point number (vi) above or mentioned in invite 
email; then below screen will be appear.
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vi.	 For e-voting, press EVSN number given in EVSN column; and for joining AGM through video conferencing, click 
on “Click here” tab under the live streaming column. 

	 E-voting screen will be shown as below, where you can cast your vote and press submit button given at the bottom 
of the screen.

Screen for login into Video Conferencing is shown below:



10 11

Fill the details as:
In the “Name” field                  -  Enter your USERID as given in email
In the “last name” field            -  Enter your Name 
In the “Email ID” field              -  Put your email ID
In the “Event password” field  -  Put the password as “cdsl@1234”
Click join now button.
	 You can join meeting through laptop, tablet, and desktop.In case you want to join through mobile, you need to 

download the webex meet app from the respective play store .
vii.	 Once you click on ‘Join now’ tab, the following screen will be appear :

viii.	 Now, Kindly click on ‘Run a temporary application’, after which a Webex driver will get downloaded. After downloading  
webex driver, run the application and you will be directed to the AGM.

By Order of the Board of Directors 
								   
Sd/-
Gokul Naresh Tandan 
Managing Director
Dated: September 03, 2024
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
(Pursuant to Section 102 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Secretary Standard 2 on General Meetings)

Item No 4. APPROVAL OF MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
	 Pursuant to the provision of Regulation 23 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“LODR”), all material related party transactions shall require the 
approval of the shareholders.

	 Accordingly, the approval of the shareholders by way of an Ordinary Resolution is sought under Regulation 23 of 
LODR for arrangements/ transactions/ contracts to be entered into with Related Parties in one or more tranches. 
The particulars of the Related Party Transactions for which approval/ratification of the Members is sought, are as 
follows:

Details of Related Party Transactions/ Arrangements/ Contracts per Financial Year

S. No	 Name of Related Party	 Nature of Relationship	 Type of Transaction(s)	 Maximum Value of
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 Transaction for Financial Year

1.	 	 Mr. Gokul Naresh 	 Chairman and 	 	 Receipt of Unsecured	 As required for a sum not 
	 	 Tandan	 	 Managing Director	 Loan from him and	 exceeding Rs. 10,00,00,000/-
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 payment of Interest	 (ten crore)
								        thereon

2.	 	 Empyrean Spirits	 Subsidiary	 	 Receipt of Unsecured	 As required not
	 	 Private Limited	 	 	 	 	 Loan from him and	 exceeding INR
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 payment of Interest	 10,00,00,000 (Ten Crore)
								        thereon

Accordingly, consent of the Members is sought by way of an Ordinary Resolution as set out in Item No. 4 of the accompanying 
Notice. This resolution enables the Board of Directors of the Company to approve related party transactions, as may be 
required by the Company, from time to time.
Moreover, by the proposed resolution, approval of the members is also sought for the material related party arrangements/
transactions/ contracts for financial years 2024-25 with the related party.
The aforesaid related party transactions do not fall under the purview of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. However, 
the same are covered by Ind AS - 24 and hence, the approval of the members is sought by way of Ordinary resolution 
under Regulation 23 of the Listing Regulations.
Except Mr. Gokul Naresh Tandan and their relatives, none of the Director(s), Manager(s) and Key Managerial Personnel(s) 
and their relative(s) is/are, in any way, concerned or interested in the said resolution, except to the extent of their equity 
shareholdings in the Company.
All entities falling under definition of related party shall abstain from voting irrespective of whether the entity is party to 
the particular transaction or not.
Item No 5. Continuation of Mr. Gokul Naresh Tandan (Din: 00441563) as Managing Director upon attaining age 
of Seventy years 
The Shareholders of the Company at the 28th Annual General Meeting held on 28 September, 2020 approved reappointment 
of Gokul Naresh Tandan (Din: 00441563) as a Managing Director of the Company for a period of five years effective from 
31th July 2020 to 30th July 2025 through a Special Resolution under the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 198, 203 and 
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under (including any statutory modification 
or re-enactment thereof) read with Schedule-V of the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association of the Company.   
Mr. Gokul Naresh Tandan, Managing Director will attain the age of 70 years on 25 March, 2024. The Company seeks 
consent of the members by way of special resolution for continuation of their holding of existing office after the age of 70 
years during the currency of his term of appointment under the provisions of Section 196 (3) (a) of the Companies Act, 
2013. The Board therefore recommends the Special Resolutions for your approval.
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Gokul Naresh Tandan aged 70 years is currently Group Executive Chairman VirtualSoft (virtsoft.com) – India’s pioneering 
Rich & Value-Added Communications Solutions Provider & Incubator. This Unique portfolio of companies and offerings 
enables Indian Enterprises – Large and Small – to collaborate and team internally and externally to maximize communication 
& international travel effectiveness, business productivity, compliance, and continuity.
Gokul Naresh Tandan is essentially a Serial Entrepreneur with an experience of building multiple businesses to national 
and global scale with dedication and focus for 5 to 10 years and then exiting with significant value for all Shareholders. 
The Details required under Regulations 36(3) of The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 and Secretarial Standard -2 enclosed as an Annexure to the notice. This explanatory statement and the resolution 
at Item  no. 5 may also be read and treated as disclosure in compliance with the requirements of Section 190 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 
Except Mr. Gokul Naresh Tandan, none of the other Directors or key managerial personnel of the Company or their 
relatives are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in Resolution No. 5.
Item No 6. Approval For Name Change of Company
It is to be noted that pursuant to the approval of the board of directors and the members of the Company in the meeting 
held on June 25, 2024 and July 25, 2024, respectively, the Company had acquired 98% equity shares of Empyrean Spirits 
Private Limited (“ESPL”), a beer manufacturing company known under the brand name of Katti Patang. 
In light of the aforesaid acquisition and to reflect the business of ESPL in the name of the Company, the board of directors, 
in its meeting held on September 03, 2024, accorded its approval for name change of the Company. 
Pursuant to Regulation 45(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a Certificate 
from the Practicing Chartered Accountant stating compliance with conditions provided in Sub- regulation (1) of Regulation 
45 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 has been attached as Annexure to the 
Notice for the reference to the members of the Company.
The above alteration requires the approval of members of the Company via. passing a special resolution.
The Board now recommends the resolution for your approval. None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company or their relatives is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the aforesaid resolution.
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Annexure to Notice of 32nd Annual General Meeting
Disclosure under Regulation 36 (3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 and
Secretarial Standards-II issued by ICSI for Item No. 2:
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Dear Shareholders, 

Your directors take pleasure in presenting for your consideration and approval the Thirty-Second Annual Report 
of Your Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.  

1 Financial Result 

The company’s performance during the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024 as compared to the previous financial 
year is summarized below: -

PARTICULARS		  (Rupees in Lacs)	 	
	 Standalone	 Consolidated
PARTICULARS		  2023-24	 2022-23	 2023-24	 2022-23

Total Income	 139.43	 120.10	 514.21	 359.25

Expenses (including depreciation & amortization)	 250.63	 212.08	 754.79	 774.39

Profit/(Loss) before Tax 	 (111.20)	 (91.98)	 (240.58)	 (415.14)

Less : Tax Expenses

Current Tax

Deferred Tax		  -		

Profit/ (Loss) for the Year 	 (112.61)	 (92.84)	 (196.16)	 (256.17)

Basis EPS	 (1.08)	 (0.89)	 (1.90)	 (2.49)

Diluted EPS	 (1.08)	 (0.89)	 (1.90)	 (2.49)

2. 	 BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS OF THE 
COMPANY   

	 Virtual Soft was primarily engaged in the business of 
Pioneering Broadband, Virtual Event & providing Mobile 
Roaming Servicing & Solutions. However due to fast 
changes in technologies and market developments, this 
business has suffered resulting in depleted revenues 
and operating assets. In this context, it was important to 
explore other lines of business to revive the company. 

	 Accordingly, the company has decided to enter into 
Alcoholic Spirits and associated lifestyle categories such 
as premium experiences/ events, hospitality, D2C food 
and beverages etc. This is being envisioned and initiated 
through Acquisition of Empyrean Spirits Private Limited 
[ESPL], which has created a vibrant brand in premium 
Beer by the name of Kati Patang and associated labels 
such as Bareilly Bold and Saffron Lager. ESPL, sees a 
long runway to growth both in India and International 
markets. 

	 Around this alco bev, premium experiences and 
hospitality build out, your company will add light, 
eclectic and immersive tech lead products and services, 
that leverage its past strengths (ESPL in immersive 
communication experience management) that resonate 

with premium alco bev and lifestyle experiences being 
targeted to the new premium consumer base of ESPL.

	 At the same time, it was felt prudent to divest the 
investment made and focus put on managing, our 
subsidiary Roam1 Telecom Ltd,

	 Subject to all Board, Shareholder and Statutory 
Approvals, Roam 1 Telecom Ltd was successfully 
divested with effect from 25th July-2024

	 In this context, I am pleased to inform you that on 
receiving all the requisite approvals from the Board, and 
you the Shareholders, via EGM, had on 25th July 2024 
as well the BSE consent letter was received on 07th 
August 2024, your company successfully completed the 
acquisition of ESPL for a consideration of Rs.19.0 crore 
through stock swap / fresh issued of shares and also 
successfully completed a preferential rights & warrants 
round (to promoter & non-promoter) on 22nd August 
2024, raising an addition Rs.683,75,000/-   to mainly 
building and growing the alco bev & lifestyle categories, 
both in India and overseas.

	 By virtue of acquiring ESPL and the preferential equity 
& warrants issued, your company-issued capital rose 
from 102.98 lakh shares to 344.23 lakh shares of Rs.10/- 
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each excluding the 69.10 lakh warrants issued & partially 
subscribed

	 The above investment, divestment and reset strategy 
opens a high growth business for Virtual Soft with 
potential of shareholder value growth, considering the 
valuations of other companies in this space.

3.	 DIVIDEND 

	 Your Directors do not recommend a dividend due to loss 
incurred for the current financial year.

4.	 TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR 
EDUCTION AND PROTECTION FUND

	 The provisions of Section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 
2013 do not apply pertaining to this financial year.

5.	 MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT IF ANY 
AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 
COMPANY OCCURRED   

	 BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO 
WHICH THIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND 
THE DATE OF THE REPORT

	 No material changes and commitments affecting the 
financial position of the Company occurred between the 
ends of the financial year to which this financial statement 
relate on the date of this report.

6.	 PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR 
INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2013

	 There were no loans, guarantees or investments made 
by the Company under Section 186 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 during the year under review and hence the 
said provision is not applicable.

7.	 STATUTORY AUDITORS 

	 M/s. Rajesh Raj Gupta & Associates LLP, Chartered 
Accountants, is proposed to be appointed as the 
Statutory Auditors of the Company for consecutive term 
of five years, from the conclusion of this i.e. 32nd Annual 
General Meeting until the conclusion of 37th Annual 
General Meeting of the Company at a remuneration to 
be determined by the Board of Directors of the Company 
in addition to the out-of-pocket expenses as may be 
incurred by them during the course of the Audit.

8.	 SECRETARIAL AUDIT

	 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act 
and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of 
Directors has appointed Mr. Sanjeev Kumar Jha from 
SJK & Co., practicing Company Secretary for conducting 
Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 

2024-25. The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed 
herewith as Annexure A. 

	 The Secretarial Audit report does not contain any 
qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

9.	 INTERNAL AUDIT

	 Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013, the Board of Directors has appointed D D A S & 
Associates, Chartered Accountant Firm for conducting 
Internal audit of the Company for the financial year 2024-
2025.

10.	 EXPLANATION OR COMMENTS ON QUALIFICATIONS, 
RESERVATIONS OR ADVERSE REMARKS OR 
DISCLAIMERS MADE BY  

        THE AUDITORS AND THE PRACTICING COMPANY 
SECRETARY IN THEIR REPORTS

	 We would like to inform you that during the financial 
year ending March 2024, that company has already 
put in place adequate Internal control system within the 
guidance of management and also taking care of that 
system in liaison with auditors and management further 
putting efforts to improve the internal control system.

11.	 ANNUAL RETURN

	 The extracts of Annual Return pursuant to the provisions 
of Section 92 read with Rule 12 of the Companies 
(Management and administration) Rules, 2014 is 
furnished in Annexure B and is attached to this Report.

12.	 NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS & THEIR 
COMMITTEES CONDUCTED DURING THE YEAR 
UNDER REVIEW

	 The Company had Eight (8) Board meetings during the 
financial year under review. The details are mentioned 
elsewhere in the Corporate Governance Report.

13.	 DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

13.1Appointment of Directors

	 The Board of Directors is duly constituted as on the end 
of the financial year.

	 In pursuance of section 152 of the companies Act, 2013 
and rules framed there under, Mr. Rajendra Virupaksha 
Kulkarni retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting of the Company and being eligible offer himself 
for reappointment. 

	 Ms. Geeta Singh has appointed as Non-Executive 
Independent Director during the year under review.

13.2 Resignation of Director

	 Ms. Ashima Puri has resigned as Non-Executive 
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Independent Director during the year under review.

13.3 Changes in Key Managerial Personnel

	 During the financial year under review there was no 
change in the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP).

14.	 DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

	 The Independent Directors have submitted their 
disclosures to the Board that they fulfill all the requirements 
as stipulated in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 
2013 so as to qualify themselves to be appointed as 
Independent Directors under the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant rules.

15.	 DEPOSITS 

 	 The Company has not accepted deposits from the public 
for the year under consideration. 

16.	 SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE 
COMPANIES

	 The details of financial performance of Subsidiary/ Joint 
Venture/Associate Company is furnished in Annexure C. 
and attached to this report.

17.	 CAPITAL MARKET DEVELOPMENTS 

	 As on date, 95.02% of Shares are in Demat form and are 
listed on various stock exchanges. The Company has, 
from time to time, reminded the shareholders/ investor, 
holding the Shares in Physical form to convert their 
Shareholding to dematerialized form. 

18.	 CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY 
ABSORPTION & FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS 
AND OUTGO 

(a) 	Details of Conservation of Energy 

	 The Company uses electric energy for its equipment 
such as air-conditioners, computer terminals, lighting 
and utilities in the work premises. 

	 Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy: All 
possible measures have been taken to conserve energy

 	 By identifying potential areas for saving; 

 	 By incorporating energy efficient equipment; 

 	 By automation. 

	 Steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources 
of energy: Nil

	 Capital Investment on energy conservation equipments: 
Nil 

(b)	 Technology Absorption 

1. Efforts in brief made towards technology absorption, 
adaptation and innovation:

	 These are adapted, wherever necessary, to local 
conditions.

2. 	 Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts:

	 New product development, productivity and quality 
improvements, enhanced safety and environmental 
protection measures and conservation of energy.

3. 	 Technology Imported: NIL

4. 	 Expenditure on R&D: NIL

C. 	 Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo

	 The information in this regard is provided in Note no. 31 
of the Accounts. There had been no foreign exchanges 
earnings, during the year. 

19.	 PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

	 Particulars of Employees as required under the provision 
of section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5 
of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are not applicable. 
Since none of the employee of the company is drawing 
salary of Rs. 1,02,00,000/- per annum or more or Rs. 
8,50,000/- per month or more or for the part of the year 
during the year under review.

(i) REMUNERATION POLICY FOR THE DIRECTORS, 
KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND OTHER 
EMPLOYEES

	 The Remuneration Policy of the Company is to ensure 
that Directors, Company’s Senior Management including 
Key Managerial Personnel are rewarded in a fair and 
reasonable manner, for their individual contributions 
to the success of the Company and are provided 
with appropriate incentives to encourage enhanced 
performance.

	 The remuneration paid to the Directors, Company’s 
Senior Management including Key Managerial Personnel 
is recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee for the approval by Board of Directors of the 
Company, subject to the approval of its shareholders, 
wherever necessary.

(ii)	 VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

	 As per the provisions of Section 177 of the Act and 
Regulation 22 of the SEBI LODR the Company has 
adopted a Whistle Blower Policy to enable its employees, 
Directors, customers and vendors to report violations, 
genuine concerns, unethical behavior and irregularities, 
if any, which could adversely affect the Company.
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	 The said policy is displayed on the Company’s website 
at www.virtsoft.com. None of the Whistle Blowers was 
denied access to the Audit Committee of the Board.

20.	 INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR 
ADEQUACY

	 The Company has adequate system of internal controls 
to safeguard and protect from loss, unauthorized use or 
disposition of its assets; it also covers areas like financial 
reporting, fraud control, compliance with applicable 
laws and regulations etc. Regular internal audits are 
conducted to check and to ensure that responsibilities are 
discharged effectively. All the transactions are properly 
authorized, recorded and reported to the Management. 
The Company is following all the applicable Accounting 
Standards for proper maintaining of the books of 
accounts and reporting financial statements. The internal 
auditor of the company checks and verifies the internal 
control and monitors them in accordance with policy 
adopted by the company. The Company continues to 
ensure proper and adequate systems and procedures 
commensurate with its size and nature of its business.

21.	 PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS 
MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES

	 No fresh Contracts or Arrangements was made with 
related parties pursuant to Section 188 except those 
continuing which were approved earlier by shareholders. 
Notes to Accounts on the transactions with related parties 
are self-explanatory.

22.	 STATEMENT CONCERNING DEVELOPMENT AND 
IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 
OF THE COMPANY

	 The Company has devised and implemented a 
mechanism for risk management and has developed 
a Risk Management Policy. The provisions of Risk 
Management Committee are not applicable on the 
Company.

23.	 SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY 
THE REGULATORS/COURTS/TRIBUNALS

	 BSE Imposed a late fee of Rs. 10,000/- plus GST totaling 
Rs. 11,800/- for delay in filing of disclosure of Voting 
Results on under regulation 23 (9) of SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015.

24.	 SECRETARIAL STANDARDS OF ICSI

	 The Company is in compliance with the applicable 
Secretarial Standards as issued by The Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India on Meetings of the Board 
of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2).

25.	 DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

	 In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 the Board hereby submit its 
responsibility Statement: —

(a) 	in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable 
accounting standards had been followed along with 
proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) 	the directors had selected such accounting policies and 
applied them consistently and made judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give 
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company 
at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss 
of the company for that period;

(c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for 
the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding 
the assets of the company and for preventing and 
detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) 	the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a 
going concern basis; and

(e) 	the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be 
followed by the company and that such internal financial 
controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

	 Internal financial control means the policies and 
procedures adopted by the Company for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business including 
adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of 
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information.

(f) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure 
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws 
and that such systems were adequate and operating 
effectively.

 26.	SHARES CAPITAL

•	 The Authorized share Capital of the Company as on 31st 
March was Rs. 15,00,00,000 (Rupees Fifteen Crores 
only) divided into 1,50,00,000 (One Crore Fifty Lakhs) 
equity shares of Rs. 10/- each.

•	 The Authorized share Capital of the Company as on the 
date of this Report is Rs. 50,00,00,000 (Rupees Fifty 
Crores only) divided into 5,00,00,000 (Five Crore Fifty) 
equity shares of Rs. 10/- each.

•	 The paid-up Share Capital of the Company as on 31st 
March was Rs. 10,29,76,000 (Rupees Ten Crore Twenty-
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Nine Lakh(s) Seventy-Six Thousand Only) divided into 
1,02,97,600 (One Crore Two Lakh(s) Ninety-Seven 
Thousand Six Hundred Only) equity shares of Rs. 10/- 
each.

•	 The paid-up Share Capital of the Company as on signing 
of this Report is Rs. 34,42,32,800 (Rupees Thirty-Four 
Crore Forty-Two Lakh(s) Thirty-Two Thousand Eight 
Hundred Only) divided into 3,44,23,280 equity shares 
of Rs. 10/- each.

	 During the year, the company has not issued any share 
capital with differential voting rights, sweat equity or 
ESOP nor provided any money to the employees or trusts 
for purchase of its own shares.

	 During the current Year 2024-25, company has issued & 
allotted 2,41,25,680 (Two Crore Forty-One Lakh Twenty-
Five Thousand Six Hundred eighty) equity shares of Rs. 
10 each at PAR.

	 During the current Year 2024-25, company has granted 
69,10,000 (Sixty-Nine Lakh Ten Thousand) warrants 
convertible into equity at the option of shareholders within 
18 months. 

27.	 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

	 A Separate statement on Corporate Governance along 
with the Certificate on its compliance is given as part of 
the Annual Reports. 

28.	 PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT 

	 The Company is an equal opportunity employer and 

is committed to ensure safe and secure environment 
prohibiting discrimination on grounds of religion, race, 
caste, sex, place of birth and gender specific violence 
such as sexual harassment at the work place. 

	 The Company has the Policy on Prevention, Prohibition 
&Redressal against Sexual Harassment of Women 
at Workplace as per the requirement of The Sexual 
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Sexual 
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Rules, 2013. This policy 
provides for prevention and redressal of complaints 
of sexual harassment and incidental matters. There is 
an Internal Complaints Committee formed as per the 
prescribed rules. 

	 The following is a summary of sexual harassment 
complaints received and disposed off during the period:

	 Number of Complaints received	 	 	 NIL
	 Number of Complaints disposed off	 	 NIL
	 Number of Complaints pending for disposal	 NIL

29.	 ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

	 Your directors acknowledge with a deep sense of 
gratitude the continued support extended by investors, 
customers, business associates, bankers and vendors. 
Your directors take this opportunity to thank the 
regulatory and governmental authorities. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Place : New Delhi		       Mr. Gokul Naresh Tandan          Mr. R.V.Kulkarni   		 Mukta Ahuja                                  
Date 3rd September 2024                Managing Director           	          Director  	          Company Secretary
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Annexure C
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiaries/Associates/Joint Venture (Pursuant to first 
proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014:
Part “A”: Subsidiary
Sl. No.	 Particulars	 Name of the Subsidiary
		  ROAM1 TELECOM LIMITED
1. 	 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the 
	 holding company’s reporting period	 NA
2.	  Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the 
	 relevant financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries.	 NA
3.	 Share Capital	 77,898,750
4.	 Reserves and Surplus	 (221,717,939)
5.	 Total assets	 138,799,994
6.	 Total liabilities	 282,619,183
7.	 Investments	 -
8.	 Turnover	 37,309,175
9.	 Profit / Loss before taxation	 (12,937,828)
10.	 Provision for taxation	 -
11.	 Profit/ Loss after taxation	 (12,937,828)
12.	 Proposed Dividend	 -
13.	 % of shareholding	 62.80%

No subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations
No subsidiary has been liquidated or sold during the year.
Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

No associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations
No associates or joint ventures has been liquidated or sold during the year.

                       	 	 	 	   	 	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Place : New Delhi		       Mr. Gokul Naresh Tandan            Mr. R.V.Kulkarni   	 Mukta Ahuja                                  
Date : September 03, 2024              Managing Director           	          Director  	          Company Secretary



20 21

VIRTUALSOFT SYSTEMS LIMITED
FORM No. AOC – 2

[Pursuant to clause (h) of Sub–section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8 (2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in 
Sub–section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including arms’ length transactions under third proviso thereto.
Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship:
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2.	 Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions not at arm’s length basis – NIL

3.	 Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis-
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Corporate Governance is about commitment to values 
and about ethical business conduct. It’s about how an 
organization is managed. This includes its Corporate 
Structure, its culture, policies and manner in which it deals 
with various stakeholders. Accordingly timely and accurate 
disclosure of information regarding the financial situation, 
performance, ownership and governance of the Company is 
an important part of Corporate Governance. This improves 
public understanding of the structure, activities and policies 
of the Organization. Consequently, the Organization is able 
to attract investors, and to enhance the trust and confidence 
of the stakeholders. 

Your Company believes that sound Corporate Governance 
is critical to enhance and retain investor trust. Accordingly, 
your Company always seeks to attain its performance rules 
with integrity. The Board extends its fiduciary responsibilities 
in the widest sense of the term. Your Company’s endeavors 
to enhance long – term shareholder value and respect 
minority rights in all our business decisions. 

  1.  VSL Philosophy on Corporate Governance 

	 It satisfies the spirit of law and not just the letter of 
the law. Corporate Governance standards should go 
beyond the law. Corporate Governance should :

a.	 Be transparent and maintain high degree of disclosures 
levels. When in doubt, disclose. 

b.	 Make a clear distinction between personal Conveniences 
and corporate resources. 

c.	 Communicate externally, in a truthful manner, about 
how the Company is run internally. 

d.	 Have a simple and transparent corporate structure 
driven solely by the business needs. 

e.	 Management is the trustee of the shareholder’s capital 
and not the owner. 

 2.	 Board of Directors 
	 At the core of its Corporate Governance practice is 

the Board, which oversees how the management 
serves and protects the long-term interests of all the 
stakeholders of the Company. Your Company believes 
that an active, well – Informed and independent Board is 
necessary to ensure the highest standards of Corporate 
Governance. Two directors are independent Directors. 

	 During the Financial Year ended 31st March 2024, 
Eight Board Meetings were held on 30.05.23, 14.08.23, 
28.08.23, 14.11.23, 15.01.24, 14.02.24, 01.03.24 & 
28.03.2024

	 The Annual General Meeting was held on 29th 
September 2023 and 	 the extra ordanary General 
Meeting was held on 14th February 2024.

	 The Composition of the Board, attendance of Directors 
at the Board Meetings held during the year under review 
as well as in the last Annual General Meeting and the 
number of other Directorships / Committee positions 
held by them are as under:

Corporate Governance Report 

S.  	 Name & 	 Category	 No. Of other	 No of Board	 Attended last AGM
No.	 Designation 	  	 Directorships 	  meetings 	 (29.09.2023) 
	 	 	 held 	 Held              Attended

1. 	 Mr. Gokul N Tandan 	 MD 	 9	 8 	 8	 Yes 

2. 	 Mr. Rajendra V. Kulkarni 	 D 	 9	 8 	 8	 Yes 

3. 	 Ms. Ashima Puri 	    NEID & WD	 0	 2	 2 	 Yes 

4.	 Mr. Geeta Singh	    NEID & WD	 1	 6	 6	 Yes
5.	 Mr. Vikram Grover	 NEID	 2	 8	 8	 Yes
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(MD- Managing Director, D – Director, NEID – Non-Executive Independent Director, WD-Woman Director) 
Directorship / Committee Positions 
None of the Directors on the Board hold Directorships in more than fifteen Companies and hold memberships in more 
than ten Committees and they do not act as Chairman of more than five Committees across all the Companies in which 
they are Directors. 
S.	 Name of the	 Directorships	 Committees Positions 	
No.	 Director 		  Name of the Company	 Committee	 Position

1.	 Mr. Gokul Naresh Tandan  	 9	 1. M/s. Goto Customers Services Pvt. Ltd. 	 	 Director
	 	 	 2. M/s. Virtual Software & Training Pvt.Ltd. 	 	 Director
	 	 	 3. M/s. Roam1 Telecom Ltd. 	 	 Director
	 	 	 4. M/s Enhanced Cummunications & 	 	 Director
	 	 	 Technologies Pvt Ltd
	 	 	 5. M/s Cloudconnect Communications Pvt Ltd	 	 Director
	 	 	 6. M/s Heal Your Paws Pet Services LLP	 	 Designated
	 	 	 7. M/s Empyrean Beverages Private Limited	 	 Partner
	 	 	 8. M/s Empyrean Spirits Private Limited	 	 Director
	 	 	 9. M/s  Commbitz Esim Private Limited
2. 	 Mr.Rajendra V. Kulkarni 	 8	 1.  M/s M R Capital Pvt. Ltd. 	 	 Director
	 	 	 2.  M/s. Vijay Stampings Pvt. Ltd. 	 	 Director
	 	 	 3.  M/s. Prime Valves India LLP	 	 Designated
	 	 	 4 . M/s. Marble Arch Estate Pvt. Ltd	 	 Partner
	 	 	 5  M/s. Virtual Software & Training (P). Ltd. 	 	 Director
	 	 	 6.  M/s. Roam1 Telecom. Ltd.  	 	 Director
	 	 	 7  M/s Cloudconnect Communications Pvt Ltd	 	 Director
	 	 	 8. M/s Empyrean Beverages Private Limited	 	 Director

			 
2.1 Information Placed before the Board 
In addition to the matters which statutorily require Board’s approval, as required by Corporate Governance, the following matters are 
regularly placed before the Board :
-Minutes of Audit Committee Meetings, Nomination & Remuneration Committee, Stakeholder Relationship Committee. 
-Recruitment and Remuneration of senior executives below the board level. 
-Details of Joint Ventures / Collaboration Agreement. 
-Disclosure of material related party transaction, if any 
-Compliance with Regulatory and statutory requirements including listing requirements & Shareholders services. 
-Details of show cause, demand, prosecution and penalty notices which are materially important 
-Transactions involving substantial payments towards goodwill, brand equity or intellectual Property. 
-Sale of material nature of investments, subsidiaries and assets, which are outside the normal course of business. 
3. Committees of the Board 
In terms of the SEBI code, the Board of the Company has constituted the Following Committees: 	
3.1 Audit Committee 				  
The following are the members and their attendance at the committee meetings:-
3.1 Audit Committee 		  		
The following are the members and their attendance at the committee meetings:-

S.No. 	 Name of Directors 	 Status 		  No. of meetings 

			   Held	                              Attended
1. 	 Mr. Rajendra V Kulkarni 	 Member 	 7 	 	 7
2.	 Ms. Ashima Puri 	 Chairperson	 2		  2
	 (Resigned on (28/08/2023)
3.	 Mr. Vikram Grover	 Member	 7	 	 7
4.	 Ms. Geeta Singh 	 Chairperson	 5	 	 5
	 (appointed on (28/08/2023)



24 25

During the year under review, the Audit Committee met 7 times on 30.05.23, 14.08.23, 28.08.23, 14.11.23, 15.01.24, 14.02.24, 01.03.24.
The broad terms of references of Audit Committee are as follows: 
- Overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the financial statement 
is correct, sufficient and credible. 
- Recommending the appointment / re- appointment of external and internal auditors, tax auditors, fixation of statutory audit fees, internal 
audit fees, secretarial audit fees and tax audit fees and also approval for payment of any other services. 
- Review and management the annual financial statements before submission to the Board. 
- Review quarterly UN – audited /audited financial results, half yearly review report. 
-Review with Management, external and internal auditors the adequacy of internal control system. 
-Review the adequacy of internal audit program me, internal audit reports; follow up reports and guidelines prepared for internal audit. 
-To do any internal investigations either departmentally or with the help of internal auditors or any other outside agency into matters 
where they are suspected fraud or irregularities. 
-Discussion with external Auditors before the Audit commences about nature and scope of audit as well as have post audit discussion 
to ascertain any area of concern. 
-Review the Company’s financial and Risk management policies. 
-To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders and creditors. 

3.2. Nomination & Remuneration Committee: 

The Committee consists of three Directors chaired by NEID.

 The Committee met Seven times during the year on 30.05.23, 14.08.23, 28.08.23, 14.11.23, 15.01.24, 14.02.24, 01.03.24. The following 
are the members and their attendance at the Committee Meetings: -

	 Name of Member 		                                              No. of meetings 
			   Held 		  Attended 

	 1. Ms. Ashima Puri
	 (Resigned on (28/08/2023)	 Chairperson	 	 2	 2
	 2. Mr. Rajendra V Kulkarni	 Member	 	 7	 7
	 3.Mr. Vikram Grover 	 Member	 	 7	 7
	 4.Ms. Geeta Singh 
	 (appointed on (28/08/2023)	 Chairperson	 	 5	 5
	
3.3.  Stakeholder Relationship Committee 
The Committee consists of three Directors chaired by NEID.
This Committee looks into transfer and transmission of Shares, issue of duplicate share certificates, 
Consolidation and sub – division of shares and investors’ grievance. This Committee particularly looks into Investors Grievances and 
oversees the performance of the in- house Share Department/ Share Transfer Agents and to ensure prompt and 
Efficient investors’ services. The Committee met Seven times during the year on 30.05.23, 14.08.23, 28.08.23, 14.11.23, 15.01.24, 
14.02.24, 01.03.24. The following are the members and their attendance at the Committee Meetings: 

	 Name of Member 		                                              No. of meetings 
			   Held 		  Attended 

	 1. Ms. Ashima Puri (Resigned on 
	 (28/08/2023)	 Chairperson 	 	 2	 2
	 2. Mr. Rajendra V Kulkarni	 Member	 	 7	 7
	 3. Mr. Vikram Grover 	 Member	 	 7	 7	
	 4. Ms. Geeta Singh 
	 (appointed on (28/08/2023)	 Chairperson	 	 5	 5
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4. General Body Meetings 
Location and time where General Meetings held in the last 3 years is given below: 

Year 	 AGM / EGM 	 LOCATION	 DATE 	 TIME 

2023-2024	 EGM	 Through Video Conferencing	 14.02.2024	 10:00 A.M.

2022-2023	 AGM	 Through Video Conferencing	 29.09.2023	 9.00 A.M

2021-2022	 AGM	 Through Video Conferencing	 30.09.2022	 9.00 A.M

2020-2021	 AGM	 Through Video Conferencing	 28.09.2021	 9.00 A.M

5.	 Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions with Promoters, Directors, Management, their Subsidiaries or Relatives 
etc., which may have potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large.

	 None of the materially significant transactions with any of the related parties were in conflict with the interest of the Company. 

6.	 Non – compliance by Company, penalties, strictures imposed on the Company by Stock Exchanges / Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (SEBI) etc. 

	 During the last years, the Stock Exchanges imposed a penalty of 10,000/- plus GST totaling Rs. 11,800/- for delay in filing of 
disclosure of voting results of Extra Ordinary General meeting held on 14th February 2024 which was duly paid & complied. In this 
year, a penalty was imposed but later waived off on explanation provided.

7.	 Means of Communication 

	 This is being done through Quarterly, half yearly and annual results, which are being published in English and Hindi daily newspapers 

8.	 General Shareholders Information: 

	 Detailed information in this regard provided in the shareholder information section forms part of this Annual Report. 

9.	 Compliance Certificate:

	 The Company Secretary have certified that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated 
in clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges and the same is annexed to The Director’s Report. 

The Certificate form the Statutory Auditors will be sent to the Listed Stock Exchanges along with the Annual Return of The Company. 

 SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION 

Registered Office	 :  S-101, Panchsheel Park, New Delhi-110 017 

Corporate Office	 : 59, Okhla Industrial Estate Phase-III, NewDelhi-110020

Annual General Meeting	 : Date & Time: 30th September, 2024 at 9:00 A .M.  

Financial Calendar: 		

 -Financial reporting for the quarter ending June 30. 2024	 	  :	  14th August 2024 

 -Financial reporting for the quarter ending Sep 30. 2024	 	  :	  14th November 2024

 -Financial reporting for the quarter ending Dec 31. 2024 	 	  :	  14th February 2025

-Financial reporting for the Year ending   March 31. 2025	  	 :	  30th May 2025

Date of Book Closures: September 24, 2024 to September 30, 2024, both days inclusive.   

Listing on Stock Exchanges: 

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on the Stock Exchange at Bombay Stock Exchange, Mumbai.
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Status of Dematerialization as on March 31, 2024

PARTICULARS 		  NO. OF SHARES 	 % TO TOTAL CAPITAL 

National Security Depository Limited 	 8753436	 85%
Central Depository Services (India) Limited 	 1031008	 10.01% 
TOTAL DEMATERIALIZED 	 9770844	 95.02% 
PHYSICAL 	 	 513156	 4.98% 
GRAND TOTAL 		  10297600 	 100% 

 

CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CERTIFICATE 

M/s VIRTUAL SOFT SYSTEMS LIMITED 

1.	 We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by M/s. VIRTUAL SOFT SYSTEMS 
LIMTED. (‘the Company’) for the year ended 31st March, 2024 as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement 
of the said with various Stock Exchange (hereinafter referred to as “the agreement”. 

2.	 The Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination 
was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the company for ensuring the compliance 
of the conditions of the Company. 

3.	 In our opinion and based on our review and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us, we certify that the conditions of the Corporate Governance as stipulated I clause 49 of the agreement have 
been complied with in all material aspects of the Company. 

4.	 As required by the Guidance note issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of India, we have to state that 
as per the records maintained by the Share transfer and / Investor Grievance Committee, there was no investor 
except which are constrained by disputes and legal impediments. 

	 We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the 
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

For SJK & Co
Sd/-
Sanjeev K Jha
Company Secretary 
FCS 8690, COP 9870 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 2nd September 2024
UDIN F008690F001106908



28

Form No. MR-3
Secretarial Audit Report

(For the Financial Year ending on 31st March 2024)
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]
To,
The Board of Directors
Virtualsoft Systems Ltd

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by Virtualsoft Systems Limited (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a 
manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing 
my opinion thereon. 
Based on my verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during 
the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period ended on 
31st March 2023, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-
processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

1.	 I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by Virtualsoft 
Systems Limited (“The Company”) for the period ended on 31st March 2024 according to the provisions of:

I.	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made there under;

II.	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the Rules made there under;

III.	 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

IV.	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign 
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

V.	 The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 
(‘SEBI Act’) to the extent applicable to the Company:-

a.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

b.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;

c.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations , 2015;

d.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

e.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

f.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and

g.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;

h.	 The Memorandum and Articles of Association.

	 I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

i)	 Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

ii)	 The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with the BSE Limited.

	 During the period under review the Company has complied broadly with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 
Guidelines, Standards, Listing Agreements etc mentioned above.



28 29

2.	 I further report that:

	 The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 
Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors or their committee’s 
that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

	 Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 
were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

	 Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded as part of the 
minutes. However, no such instance was applicable as explained to me.

	 The Company has obtained all necessary approvals under the various provisions of the Act as explained to me; 
and

	 There were no prosecutions initiated against the directors or the company. However, penalty was imposed by Bombay 
Stock Exchange during the year for delay in filing of disclosure of voting results of Extra Ordinary General meeting 
held on 14th February 2024, which was duly paid & complied as explained to me. No other penalty/fine/prosecution 
was imposed or initiated under the Companies Act, SEBI Act, SCRA, Depositories Act, Listing Agreement and Rules, 
Regulations and Guidelines framed under these Acts against / on the Company, its Directors and Officers.

	 The Directors have complied with the disclosure requirements in respect of their eligibility of appointment, their 
being independent and compliance with the Code of Business Conduct & Ethics for Directors and Management 
Personnel. 

3.	 I further report that:

	 a. As per information & declaration received from the management, the Company has complied with the requirements 
under the Equity Listing Agreements entered into with BSE Limited;

	 b. As per information & declaration received from the management, the Company has complied with the provisions 
of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 
including the provisions with regard to disclosures and maintenance of records required under the said Regulations;

	 c. As per information & declaration received from the management, the Company has complied with the provisions 
of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992 including the 
provisions with regard to disclosures and maintenance of records required under the said Regulations;

4.	 I further report that based on the information received and records maintained there are adequate systems and 
processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

For SJK & Co.                          
Sd/-           
(Sanjeev K Jha)
Company Secretary
FCS-8690, CP No: 9870		

UDIN:	 F008690F001107062	
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STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of VirtualSoft Systems Limited 
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial 
Statements of Virtualsoft Systems Limited (“the Company”), 
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, 
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including the Other 
Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and 
the Statement of changes in equity for the year then 
ended, and notes to the Standalone Financial Statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the 
“Standalone Financial Statements”). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us, except for the effects of 
the matter described in the Qualified Opinion section of 
“Annexure-B Report on the Internal Financial Controls under 
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 
Act,2013” section of our report, the aforesaid Standalone 
Financial Statements give the information required by the 
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so required 
and give a true and fair view, in conformity with the Accounting 
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with 
(the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2023) 
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, 
of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, 
and its deficit, cash flows and changes in equity for the year 
ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as 
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities 
under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial 
Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with 
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
Standalone Financial Statements under the provisions of the 
Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements 
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional 
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
Standalone Financial Statements of the current period. These 
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
Standalone Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming 
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion 
on these matters. We have determined the 

matters described below to be the key audit matters to be 
communicated in our report.
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Emphasis of Matter
The company’s net worth has been completely eroded, 
with a net worth of (-) INR 1,119.85 lakh as of 31st March 
2024. The accumulated losses for the year ending 31st 
March 2024 amount to INR 2,149.61 lakh, according to the 
maintained books of accounts. Refer to Notes to Accounts 
No. 44, which states that “there are plans either to add 
other lines of business or to renew existing operations. 
Accordingly, the financial statements have been prepared 
on the basis of the going concern assumption.”
Information Other than the Standalone Financial 
Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
The company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
preparation of other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Management 
Discussion and Analysis, Director’s Report including 
annexure to Director’s Report included in the annual 
report of the but does not include the Standalone Financial 
Statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 
Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does 
not cover the other information and we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial 
Statements, our responsibility is to read the other 

information identified above when it becomes available 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information 
is materially inconsistent with the Standalone Financial 
Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course 
of audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If based on the work we have performed, we conclude that 
there is a material misstatement of this other information, 
we are required to report the facts. We have nothing to 
report in this regard.
Management’s Responsibilities for the Standalone 
Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for 
the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with 
respect to the preparation of these  standalone Financial 
Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial 
position, financial performance, statement of changes 
in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, 
including the Indian Accounting Standards as specified 
under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding 
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and 

Revenue Recognition

The management is of the opinion that it controls the goods 
before transferring them to the customer. 

The variety of terms that define when controls are transferred to 
the customer, as well as the high value of the transactions, give 
rise to the risk that revenue is not recognized in the appropriate 
accounting period. 

Revenue is measured net of returns and allowances, trade 
discounts and volume rebates (collectively ‘Discount and 
rebates’). 

There is a risk that these discount and rebates are incorrectly 
recorded as it also requires ascertain degree of estimation, 
resulting in understatement of the associated expenses and 
accrual. 

Accordingly, due to the significant risk associated with revenue 
recognition in accordance with terms of Ind AS 115 ‘Revenue 
from Contracts with Customers’, it was determined to be a key 
audit matter in our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures on adoption of Ind AS 115, Revenue 
from contracts with Customers (‘Ind AS 115’), which is the new 
revenue accounting standard, includes:

• 	 Evaluation of the design and implementation of the processes 
and internal controls relating to implementation of the new 
revenue accounting standard;

• 	 Selection of samples of both continuing and new contracts 
for 

- 	 testing of operating effectiveness of the internal control 
- 	 identification of contract wise performance obligations and 
- 	 Determination of transaction price.
• Verifying management’s assessment of contractual 

arrangements including those relating to income from 
supplier rebates, terms of contract and commercial 
substance thereof in order to assess the adherence to 
revised accounting policies in light of the requirements of 
Ind AS 115.

• 	 Selecting samples of contractual arrangements, testing 
management’s assessment of the applicability of the 
standard to such arrangements, identification of distinct 
performance obligations and determination of transaction 
prices.

• 	 Additionally, we also evaluated the adequacy of disclosures 
made in the financial statements.

The key audit matter
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detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
and the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation 
and presentation of the Standalone Financial Statements 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, 
management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless management 
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those Board of Directors are also responsible for 
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Standalone Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the Standalone Financial Statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these Standalone Financial Statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of 
the Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The 
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to 
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of 
the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion 

on whether the company has an adequate internal financial 
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls. 
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management. 
• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use 
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on 
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as 
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures in the Standalone Financial 
Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the 
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause 
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 
• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content 
of the Standalone Financial Statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial 
Statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the 
Standalone Financial Statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions 
of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Standalone 
Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning 
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results 
of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 
misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements.
We communicate with those charged with governance 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a 
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate 
with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with 
governance, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the Standalone Financial 
Statements of the current period and are therefore the key 
audit matters. We describe these matters in our Auditor’s 
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Report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure 
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 
we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated in 
our report because the adverse consequences of doing 
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) 

Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of 
section 143 of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 
and 4 of the Order.

2.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report 
that:

(a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required 
by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books;

(c)	 The company do not have the branch offices as per 
information provided to us hence the reporting on 
“the report on the accounts of any branch office of the 
company audited under sub-section (8) by a person 
other than the company’s auditor has been sent to him 
under the proviso to that sub-section and the manner 
in which he has dealt with it in preparing his report” is 
not applicable in this case;

(d)	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and 
Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement 
of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account;

(e)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial 
Statements comply with the Indian Accounting 
Standards as specified under section 133 of the Act;

(f)	 On the basis of the written representations received 
from the directors as on March 31, 2024 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors 
is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of 
the Act

(g)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting of the Company 
and operating effectiveness of such controls, refer 

to our separate report in “Annexure- B”. Our report 
expresses a qualified opinion on the adequacy and 
operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal 
financial controls with reference to Standalone 
Financial Statements.

(h)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the 
Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements 
of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our 
opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the 
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors 
during the year is in accordance with the provisions 
of Section 197 of the Act.

(i)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, 
as amended in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given 
to us:

i.	 The Company does not have any pending litigations 
as on 31.03.2024 which would impact its financial 
position;

ii.	 The Company did not have any long-term contracts 
including derivative contracts for which there were any 
material foreseeable losses.

iii.	 Following are the instances of delay in transferring 
amounts required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company:.

	 Year		  Amount(Rs)
	 1996-1997	 27,390/-
	 1997-1998	 43,850/-

iv. (A) The management has represented that, to the 
best of it’s knowledge and belief, no funds have been 
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed 
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of 
funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or 
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), 
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or 
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified 
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security 
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 



34

(B) The management has represented, that, to the best of 
it’s knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by 
the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including 
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company 
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by 
or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) 
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of 
the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 
(C) Based on audit procedures which we considered 
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing 
has come to their notice that has caused them to believe 
that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain 
any material misstatement. 
v. The company has not declared or paid any dividend 
during the year in contravention of the provisions of section 
123 of the Companies Act, 2013.
vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, 
the Company has used accounting software for maintaining 
its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 
2024, which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) 
facility and the same has operated throughout the year for 
all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, 
during the course of our audit we did not come across any 
instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.
vii. As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023, reporting 
under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail. The company 
utilized accounting software with an audit trail (edit log) 
feature, which remained operational throughout the year 
for all recorded transactions and was not tampered with. 
Furthermore, the responsibility for retaining the audit trail 
in accordance with statutory requirements lies with the 
company.”

For Rajesh Raj Gupta & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
(FRN No.026338N/N500357)

CA. MANOJ KUMAR 
Partner
Membership No. 521409	 	 	 	
	
UDIN: 24521409BKCRVY8179

Date: 30-05-2024
Place: New Delhi
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Report on the matter specified in paragraph 3 of the 
Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘’the Oder”) 
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of 
Section 143(11) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
as referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report 
on other legal and regulatory requirements” of our report 
of even date

i. In respect of the Company’s property, plant and 
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets:

a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records 
showing full particulars, including quantitative details and 
situation of property, plant and equipment and relevant 
details of right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing 
full particulars of intangible assets.

b) In our opinion property, plant and equipment have been 
physically verified by the management at reasonable 
intervals. No material discrepancies were noticed on such 
verification during the year.

c) Details of immovable properties, which are not held in 
the name of the company, this clause not applicable to the 
Company.

d)The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant 
and equipment (including right-of-use assets) and intangible 
assets during the year.

e) No proceedings have been initiated and are pending 
against the company for holding any benami property 
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 
of 1988) and rules made thereunder. Therefore, reporting 
under this sub-clause is not required.

ii. a) The company does not have any inventory. Therefore, 
reporting under this clause is not applicable.

b) The company has not been sanctioned working capital 
limits in excess of five crore rupees during the year in 
aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis 
of security of current assets; 

iii.The company has not made any investments in, provided 
any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances 
in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, 
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. 
Therefore, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanation given to us, there are no loans, investments, 
guarantees and securities given in respect of which 
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, are applicable.

v. According to the information and explanations given to 
us, the company has not accepted any deposits from the 
public within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and 
the Rules framed there under to the extent notified. Hence 
the provision of clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the order are 
not applicable to the company.

vi. As per the information and explanation given to us, The 
Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance 
of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act, for the 
products of the company.

vii. According to the information and explanation given to 
us and on the basis of our examinations of the records of 
the company. The company is regular in depositing the 
undisputed statutory dues including goods and services 
Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-
tax, sales-tax, service tax, value added tax, cess and any 
other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of 
aforesaid dues were outstanding as at March 31, 2024 for 
a period of more than six months from the date of becoming 
payable except the followings: - 

The amounts required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company: -

Year	 	 	 Amount (Rs)

1996-1997	 	 27,390/-

1997-1998	 	 43,850/-

viii. In our opinion and as per the information and explanation 
given to us, there are no transactions relating to previously 
unrecorded income that have been surrendered or 
disclosed as income during the year in the Tax Assessment 
under the Income tax Act, 1961(43 of 1961).

ix.a) As per the information and explanation given to us, the 
company has not taken any loans and borrowings during 
the financial year. Therefore, reporting under this clause 
is not applicable. 

b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter 
by any bank or financial institution or government or any 
government authority.

Annexure ‘A’ 
Annexure-A to the Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Virtualsoft Systems Limited on 
the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 
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c) The Company has not taken any term loan during 
the year and there are no outstanding term loans at the 
beginning of the year and hence, reporting under clause 
3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

d) On an overall examination of the financial statements 
of the Company, funds raised on short-term basis have, 
prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term 
purposes by the Company.

e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of 
the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from 
any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations 
of its subsidiaries.

f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year 
and hence reporting on clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not 
applicable

x. a) In our opinion and as per the information and 
explanation given to us, the company has not raised money 
by way of initial public offer or further public offer. Hence 
reporting under this clause is not applicable to the company.

b) In our opinion and as per the information and explanation 
given to us, the company has not made any preferential 
allotment or private placement of shares or convertible 
debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during 
the year. Hence reporting under this clause is not applicable 
to the company.

xi. a) According to the information and records furnished to 
us, no material fraud by the Company or on the Company 
by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported 
during the year. 

b) No report under subsection (12) of section 143 of 
Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed 
under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014 with the Central Government during the year and upto 
date of this report in view of sub clause (a) above. 

c) As auditors, we did not receive any whistle- blower 
complaint during the year.  

xii. In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi 
company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not 
applicable.

xiii. In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with 
Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 with 
respect to applicable transactions with the related parties 
and the details of related party transactions have been 
disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements as 
required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv. a) In our opinion, the Company has an adequate internal 
audit system commensurate with the size and the nature 
of its business.

b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the 
year under audit, issued to the Company during the year 
and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent 
of our audit procedures.

xv. According to the information and explanations given 
to us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash 
transactions with directors or persons connected with him. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

xvi. The Company is not required to be registered under 
section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934. 
Accordingly, clause (xvi) (a) to (d) of Paragraph 3 is not 
applicable.

xvii. According to the information and explanations given 
to us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, the company has incurred a net cash loss of INR 
98.69 lakh (March 2023: INR 82.42 lakh) from operating 
activities.

xviii. According to the information and explanations given 
to us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, there was a change in the statutory auditor of 
the company. Krishna Neeraj & Associates has submitted 
its resignation from statutory audit on 19th December 
2023, and we (Rajesh Raj Gupta & Associates LLP) were 
appointed as statutory audit with effect from 14th February, 
2024.

xix.According to the information and explanations given 
to us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates 
of realization of financial assets and payment of financial 
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial 
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors 
and management plans and based on our examination 
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has 
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that 
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit 
report indicating that company is not capable of meeting its 
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when 
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance 
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not assurance as 
to the future viability of the Company. We further state that 
our reporting is based on the facts up to date of audit report 
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that 
all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the 
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company 
as and when fall due. 
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xx. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the company, 
no amount has been incurred towards CSR expenses based on the loss for the period.

For Rajesh Raj Gupta & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
(FRN No.026338N/N500357)

CA. MANOJ KUMAR
Partner
Membership No. 521409	 	 	 	
UDIN: 24521409BKCRVY8179

Date: 30-05-2024
Place: New Delhi
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“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even 
date on the Standalone Financial Statements of Virtualsoft 
Systems Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) 
of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,2013

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of Virtualsoft Systems Limited (“the Company”) 
as of March 31st, 2024, in conjunction with our audit of the 
Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the 
year ended on that date.

Management`s Responsibility for Internal Financial 
Controls 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing 
and maintaining internal financial controls based on 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India .These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively 
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of 
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the Companies 
Act,2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s 
internal financial controls over the financial reporting based 
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the 
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be 
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 
2013 to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial 
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance 
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial controls over 
financial reporting was established and maintained and if 
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting and their operating 

Annexure- B to the Auditors’ Report effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing 
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud 
or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company`s internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting 

A company’s internal financial control over financial 
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting 
and the preparation of Standalone Financial Statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company’s internal financial 
control over financial reporting includes those policies and 
procedures that 

(1) 	Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 
company;

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions 
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of Standalone Financial Statements in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, and 
that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorities of 
management and directors of the company; and 

(3)	  Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention 
or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a 
material effect on the Standalone Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and 
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future 
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periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial 
control over financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of the changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, 
an adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over 
financial reporting were not operating effectively as at 31st 
March 2024, based on the internal control over financial 
reporting criteria established by the Company considering 
the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 

Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India.

For Rajesh Raj Gupta & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
(FRN No.026338N/N500357)

CA. MANOJ KUMAR
Partner
Membership No. 521409	 	 	 	 	
UDIN: 24521409BKCRVY8179

Date: 30-05-2024
Place: New Delhi
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Balance Sheet as at  31 March, 2024 In Indian Rupees

CIN : L72200DL1992PLC047931

		  Particulars		  Note		  As At  	 As At
				    	 	 31st March 2024	 31st March 2023		
ASSETS				  

 I		  Non-current assets				  
	 (a)	 Property, plant and equipment	 6	 	  15.03 	 	 15.14 
	 (b)	 Intangible assets under Development	 7	 	  90.11 	 	 90.11 
	 (c)	 Right-of-use assets			    -   	  -   
	 (d)	 Other Intangible assets	 	  	 -   	  -   
	 (e)	 Financial assets	 	 	  -   	  -   
	 	   (i) Investments	 8	  	 926.30 		  926.30 
	 	   (ii) Loans	 	 9	 	  1.15 	 	 1.15 
	 (f)	 Deferred Tax Assets (Net)			    -   	  -   
	 (g)	 Other non-current assets	 10		   -   	  -   
	 	 	 	  	 	 1,032.59 		  1,032.70 
II		  Current assets			 
	 (a)	 Inventories	 	 11	 	  -   	  -   
	 (b)	 Financial assets	 	 	
	 	   (i) Trade receivables	 12	 	  53.51 	 	 85.78 
	 	   (ii) Cash and cash equivalents	 13	 	  25.40 	 	 49.62 
	 	   (iii) Other bank balances	 14	 	  4.77 		  2.50 
	 	   (iv) Loans	 	 9	 	  -   	  -   
	 	   (v) Other Financial Assets	 15	 	  0.30 		  1.91 
	 (c)	 Other current assets	 16	 	  31.21 	 	 39.89 
						       115.19 		  179.71 
		  TOTAL ASSETS		   	 1,147.78 	 	 1,212.41 
		  EQUITY AND LIABILITIES			 
III		  Equity			 
	 (a)	 Equity share capital	 17	 	  1,029.76	  	  1,029.76 
	 (b)	 Other equity		 18	 	  (2,149.61)	 	  (2,037.00)
	 	 Total equity	 	 	 	  (1,119.85)	  	 (1,007.24)
	 	 LIABILITIES		 	
IV	 	 Non-current liabilities	 	 	
	 (a)	 Financial liabilities	 	 	
	 	   (i) Borrowings	 19	 	  2,175.33 	 	 2,099.23 
	 	   (ii) Lease liabilities	 	 	  -   	  -   
	 	   (iii) Other Financial Liabilities	 20	 	  -   	  -   
	 (b)	 Provisions	 	 21	 	  19.13 		  15.22 
	 	 	 	 	 	  2,194.46 	 	 2,114.45 
V		  Current liabilities				  
	 (a)	 Financial liabilities	 	 	
		    (i) Borrowings	 19		   -   	  -   
	 	   (ii) Trade payables	 22	 	  64.47 	 	 95.91 
	 	   (iii) Lease Liabilities	 	  	 -   	  -   
	 	   (iv) Other financial liabilities	 23	  	 0.71 	 	 0.71 
	 (b)	 Other current liabilities	 24	  	 6.76 	 	 7.57 
	 (c)	 Provisions		  21	  	 1.23 	 	 1.02 
	 	 	 	  	 	 73.18 	 	 105.21 
		  Total liabilities			    2,267.63 	 	 2,219.66 
		  TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES			    1,147.78 		  1,212.41 
		  Summary of significant Accounting policies	 3	 	
	 	 The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

In terms of our report of even date attached. 
For Rajesh Raj Gupta & Associates LLP	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors	
Chartered Accountants		  VIRTUALSOFT SYSTEMS LIMITED		
FRN: 026338N/N50035
CA. Manoj Kumar	 Rajendra V. Kulkarni	 Gokul N Tandan	 Mukta Ahuja	
Partner		  Director 	 Managing Director	 Company Secretary	
Membership No.: 521409	 DIN : 00988255	 DIN : 00441563	 M. No. : 49501
Place : New Delhi		  Athar Ahmad
Date : 	30-05-2024	 	 C.F.O.
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March, 2024
		  Particulars		  Note No.	 For the year ended 	 For the year ended
					     31st March 2024	  31st March 2023

I	 	 Revenue from operations 	 26	  138.73 	  120.10 
II	 	 Other income	 27	  0.70 	  -   
III		  Total income (I+II)		   139.43 	  120.10 
IV	 	 Expenses	 	 	
	 (a)	 Purchase of services	 28	  113.55 	  88.16 
	 (b)	 Employee benefit expense	 30	  53.94 	  49.47 
	 (c)	 Finance costs	 31	  -   	  -   
	 (d)	 Depreciation and amortization expense	 32	  1.57 	  2.84 
	 (e)	 Other expenses	 33	  81.57 	  71.60 
		  Total expense 		   250.63 	  212.08 
V		  Profit before exceptional items and tax (III-IV)		   (111.20)	  (91.98)
VI	 	 Exceptional items	 34	  -   	  -   
VII	 	 Profit before tax (V+VI)	 	  (111.20)	  (91.98)
VIII	 	 Income tax expense	 	 	
	 (a)	   Current tax		   -   	  -   
	 (b)	   Deferred tax 			 
		  Total tax expense		   -   	  -   
IX		  Profit for the year (VII-VIII)		   (111.20)	  (91.98)
X	 	 Other comprehensive income	 	 	
	 	 Items that will not be reclassified to 
	 	 profit or loss in subsequent periods:	 	 	
	 (i) 	 Remeasurements of post-employment defined 
	 	 benefit obligations	 36	  (1.41)	  (0.86)
	 (ii) 	 Change in fair value of FVOCI equity instruments	 	 	
	 (iii) 	 Income tax effect	 	 	
	 	 Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax	  (1.41)	  (0.86)
XI		  Total comprehensive income for the year (IX+X)		   (112.61)	  (92.84)
XII	 	 Earnings per share in Rs.	 40	 	
	 	 Basic earnings per equity share 	 	  (1.08)	  (0.89)
	 	 Diluted earnings per equity share 	 	  (1.08)	  (0.89)

	 Summary of significant Accounting policies	 3	
	 The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements	 	

CIN : L72200DL1992PLC047931

In terms of our report of even date attached. 
For Rajesh Raj Gupta & Associates LLP	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors	
Chartered Accountants		  VIRTUALSOFT SYSTEMS LIMITED		
FRN: 026338N/N50035
CA. Manoj Kumar	 Rajendra V. Kulkarni	 Gokul N Tandan	 Mukta Ahuja	
Partner		  Director 	 Managing Director	 Company Secretary	
Membership No.: 521409	 DIN : 00988255	 DIN : 00441563	 M. No. : 49501
Place : New Delhi		  Athar Ahmad
Date : 	30-05-2024	 	 C.F.O.
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A		  Equity share capital	 Note No.	 Nos.	 Rs. in Laks

	 As at 31st March 2023		   1,02,97,600 	  1,029.76 
	 Changes in equity share capital	 17	  -   	  -   
	 As at 31st March 2024		   1,02,97,600 	  1,029.76 
					   
(B)	 Other equity 	 	 	 	
	 Particulars	  	 Capital  	 Retained	 FVOCI	 Total
	 	 	 	 Reserve 	  Earnings 	 -Equity 	  other equity 
						      instruments
	 Balance as at 31st March 2023	  20.00 	  (2,057.00)	  -   	  (2,037.00)
	 Profit for the year	  -   	  (111.20)	  -   	  (111.20)
	 Other comprehensive income	  -   	  (1.41)	  -   	  (1.41)
	 Total comprehensive income for the year	  -   	  (112.61)	  -   	  (112.61)
	 Equity Dividend including taxes thereon	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Issue of equity shares	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Balance as at 31st March 2024	  20.00 	  (2,169.61)	  -   	  (2,149.61)

	 The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements	

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March 2024

In terms of our report of even date attached. 
For Rajesh Raj Gupta & Associates LLP	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors	
Chartered Accountants		  VIRTUALSOFT SYSTEMS LIMITED		
FRN: 026338N/N50035
CA. Manoj Kumar	 Rajendra V. Kulkarni	 Gokul N Tandan	 Mukta Ahuja	
Partner		  Director 	 Managing Director	 Company Secretary	
Membership No.: 521409	 DIN : 00988255	 DIN : 00441563	 M. No. : 49501
Place : New Delhi		  Athar Ahmad
Date : 	30-05-2024	 	 C.F.O.
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March, 2024
			   Particulars		  31 March 2024	 31 March 2023
					      

Cash flow from operating activities 			 
Total comprehensive income for the year 		  (111.20)	  (91.98)

Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows : 	 	 	

Depreciation/amortization  	 	 1.57 	  2.84 

Provision for employees benefits obligation  	 	 4.12 	  2.75 

(Profit)/Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 	 	 0.17 	  -   

Other comprehensive income 	 	 (1.41)	  (0.86)

Operating profit before working capital changes 		  (106.75)	  (87.26)

Movements in working capital: 		  		
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables and other liabilities 	 	 (32.25)	  (58.07)

(Decrease)/increase in short-term provisions 			 

(Decrease)/increase liability for current tax 			 

Decrease/(increase) in trade receivable 	 	 32.28 	  (16.06)

Decrease/(increase) in other current assets 	 	 8.03 	  78.96 

Cash generated from operations 	 	 (98.69)	  (82.42)

Direct taxes paid 			    -   	  -   

Net cash flow from/(used in) operating activities (A) 		  (98.69)	  (82.42)

Cash flows from investing activities 			 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment, including 

intangible assets, capital work in progress 	 	 (1.83)	  (3.08)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 	 	 0.20 	  -   

Net cash flow from investing activities (B) 		  (1.63)	  (3.08)
Cash flow from financing activities 					  
Proceeds/(Repayment) of long-term borrowings & Lease liabilities 	 	 76.10 	  114.60 
Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities (C) 		  76.10 	  114.60 
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B +C) 		  (24.22)	  29.10 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 	 	 49.62 	  20.53 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 		  25.40 	  49.62 
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Components of cash and cash equivalents 	 	 	 		
Cash in hand 	 	 	  1.42 	  15.38 
With banks in current account 	 	 23.27 	  33.52 
Unpaid dividend accounts 	 	 0.71 	  0.71 
Total cash and cash equivalents [Refer Note No. 16] 		  25.40 	  49.62 

Note : The above Cash flow statement has been prepared under the Indirect method setout in Ind AS-7 ‘Statement of 
Cash Flow’.		
Summary of significant Accounting policies	 3
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

In terms of our report of even date attached. 
For Rajesh Raj Gupta & Associates LLP	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors	
Chartered Accountants		  VIRTUALSOFT SYSTEMS LIMITED		
FRN: 026338N/N50035
CA. Manoj Kumar	 Rajendra V. Kulkarni	 Gokul N Tandan	 Mukta Ahuja	
Partner		  Director 	 Managing Director	 Company Secretary	
Membership No.: 521409	 DIN : 00988255	 DIN : 00441563	 M. No. : 49501
Place : New Delhi		  Athar Ahmad
Date : 	30-05-2024	 	 C.F.O.
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1.	 Corporate information

	 Virtualsoft Systems Limited (‘the Company’) is a public 
company domiciled in India and incorporated under 
the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. Its equity 
shares are listed on the BSE Limited in India. The 
registered office of the Company is located at Flat 
No.S-101, Panchsheel Park, New Delhi - 110017.

	 The vision of the company is to empower business 
and learning communities with rich “knowledge on 
demand”. The Company is primarily engaged in the 
business ofPioneering Broadband, Virtual Event & 
Providing Mobile Roaming Services & Solutions.

	 Thesestandalone financial statements are approved 
for issue by the Board of Directors on May 30, 2023. 

2.	 Basis of preparation

	 The standalone financial statements of the Company 
have been prepared in accordance with Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015, Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
(Amendment) Rules, 2016 as amended and the 
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

	 The standalone financial statements have been 
prepared on a going concern basis using historical 
cost convention and on an accrual method of 
accounting, except for certain financial assets and 
financial liabilitieswhich are measured at fair value/ 
amortized cost (Refer accounting policy regarding 
financial instruments).

	 The standalone financial statements are presented in 
Indian RupeesLakhsand all values have been rounded 
to the nearest rupees, unless stated otherwise.

3.	 Significant accounting policies

	 The Company has applied the following accounting 
policies to all periods presented in the standalone 
financial statements. 

a)	 Functional and presentation currency

	 The standalone financial statements are prepared in 
Indian Rupees, which is the Company’s presentation 
currency and the functional currency for all its 
operations. 

b)	 Current and non-current classification

	 The Company presents assets and liabilities in 
the balance sheet based on current/ non-current 
classification. An asset is classified as current when 
it is: 

•	 expected to be realised or intended to sold or 
consumed in the normal operating cycle;

•	 held primarily for the purpose of trading;

•	 expected to be realised within twelve months after the 
reporting period; or

•	 cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being 
exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 
twelve months after the reporting date.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when:

•	 it is expected to be settled in the normal operating 
cycle;

•	 it is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

•	 it is due to be settled within twelve months after the 
reporting date; or 

•	 there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement 
of the liability for at least twelve months after the 
reporting date.

	 All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as 
non-current only.

	 Operating cycle of the Company is the time between 
the acquisition of assets for processing and their 
realisation in cash or cash equivalents. As the 
Company’s normal operating cycle is not clearly 
identifiable, it is assumed to be twelve months.

c)	 Revenue recognition

	 Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is 
probable that the economic benefits will flow to 
the Company and the revenue can be reliably 
measured, regardless of when the payment is being 
made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the 
consideration received or receivable, taking into 
account contractually defined terms of payment and 
excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the 
government. The Company has concluded that it is the 
principal in all of its revenue arrangements since it is 
the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as 
it has pricing latitude and is also exposed to inventory 
and credit risks.

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the 
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have 
passed to the buyer which usually is on actual despatch 
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of goods to the buyer. Amounts disclosed are inclusive 
of excise duty and net of returns and allowances, trade 
discounts, volume rebates, value added taxes and goods 
and service tax and amounts collected on behalf of third 
parties.

Rendering of services

Revenue from services is recognised by reference to the 
stage of completion of work. 

d)	 Other Income

i.	 Interest Income

	 Interest income is accrued on time basis, by 
referenceto the principal outstanding and at the 
effectiveinterest rate applicable. Interest income is 
included infinance income in the statement of profit 
and loss.

ii.	 Dividends

	 Dividend income is recognised in the statement of 
profit and loss only when the right to receive payment 
is established, it is probable that the economic benefits 
associated with the dividend will flow to the Company, 
and the amount of the dividend can be measured 
reliably.

iii.	 Rental Income

	 Rental income arising from operating leases on 
investment properties is accounted for on a straight-
line basis over the lease terms and is included in other 
income in the statement of profit and loss.

e)	 Property, plant and equipment

	 All property, plant and equipment are stated at 
historical cost, net of accumulated depreciation (other 
than freehold land) and accumulated impairment 
losses, if any.

	 The initial cost of property, plant and equipment 
comprises its purchase price, including import duties 
and non-refundable purchase taxes, and any directly 
attributable costs of bringing an asset to working 
condition and location for its intended use. It also 
includes the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling 
and removing the item and restoring the site on which 
it is located. Items such as spares are capitalized 
when they meet the definition of property, plant and 
equipment.

	 If significant parts of an item of property, plant 
and equipment have different useful lives, then 
they are accounted for as separate items (major 
components) of property, plant and equipment. 

Likewise, expenditure towards major inspections and 
overhauls are identified as a separate component 
and depreciated over the expected period till the next 
overhaul expenditure.

	 Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, 
plant and equipment is added to its book value only 
if it increases the future economic benefits from 
the existing asset beyond its previously assessed 
standard of performance/life. All other expenses on 
existing property, plant and equipment, including day-
today repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of 
replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit 
and loss for the period during which such expenses 
are incurred.

	 An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately 
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying 
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable 
amount.

	 Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is 
calculated using the straight-line method (SLM) to 
allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over 
their estimated useful lives, as per the useful life 
prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.

	 The assets’ residual values and useful lives are 
reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of 
each reporting period.

	 Freehold land is not depreciated.

	 Leasehold buildings are amortised over the duration 
of the shorter of the useful life or lease term.

	 An item of property, plant and equipment and any 
significant part initially recognised is derecognised 
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits 
are expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on 
the disposal or retirement or derecognition of the asset 
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

	 Capital work-in-progress represents cost of property, 
plant and equipment that are not yet ready for their 
intended use and are carried at cost determined as 
aforesaid. 

f)	 Intangible assets

	 Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on 
initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, 
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated 
amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if 
any. Internally generated intangible assets are not 
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capitalised and the expenditure is recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss in the period in which the 
expenditure is incurred.

	 The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as 
either finite or indefinite.

	 Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised 
over their useful economic lives and assessed for 
impairment whenever there is an indication that the 
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation 
period and the amortisation method for an intangible 
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the 
end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected 
useful life or the expected pattern of consumption 
of future economic benefits embodied in the asset 
are considered to modify the amortisation period or 
method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes 
in accounting estimates to be adjusted prospectively. 
The amortisation expense on intangible assets with 
finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and 
loss. 

	 The Company does not have any intangible assets 
with indefinite useful lives.

	 Softwaresare amortized on a straight linebasis over 
a period of 4 years.

	 Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an 
intangible asset are measured as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset and are recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss when the asset is 
derecognised.

g)	 Investment properties

	 Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for 
capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied 
by the Company, is classified as investment property. 
Investment property is measured initially at its cost, 
including related transaction costs and wherever 
applicable borrowing costs. Subsequent expenditure 
is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount only when 
it is probable that future economic benefits associated 
with the expenditure will flow to the Company and the 
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other 
repair and maintenance costs are expensed when 
incurred. When part of an investment property is 
replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part is 
derecognised.

	 Depreciation on investment properties is calculated 
using the straight-line method (SLM) to allocate their 
cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated 

useful lives, as per the useful life prescribed in 
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.

	 Investment properties are derecognised either 
when they have been disposed of or when they 
are permanently withdrawn from use and no future 
economic benefit is expected from their disposal. 
The difference between the net disposal proceeds 
and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised 
in the statement of profit and loss in the period of 
derecognition.

	 For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to 
continue with the carrying value of all of its investment 
properties recognised as of 1 April, 2016 measured 
as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value 
as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

h)	 Inventories
	 Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net 

realisable value.
	 Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present 

location and conditions are accounted for as follows:
•	 Raw materials, components, stores and spares, 

packingmaterials and others: cost includes cost of 
purchase andother costs incurred in bringing the 
inventories to theirpresent location and condition. 
Cost is determined on first-in, first-out (FIFO)basis.

•	 Work in progress: cost includescost of direct materials 
and labour and estimated overheads upto the stage 
of completion. Cost isdetermined on first-in, first-out 
(FIFO) basis.

•	 Finished goods: cost includes cost of direct materials, 
labour, cost of manufacturing, cost of conversion and 
other costs incurred in finishing the goods. Cost is 
determined on first-in, first-out (FIFO) basis.

•	 Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and 
othercosts incurred in bringing the inventories to their 
presentlocation and condition. Cost is determined on 
first-in, first-out (FIFO)basis.

•	 Scrap is valued at estimated net realizable value.
	 Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in 

the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs 
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to 
make the sale.

i)	 Segment Reporting
	 Operating segments are reported in a manner 

consistent with the internal reporting provided to the 
chief operating decision maker.
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j)	 Borrowing Costs
	 Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, 

construction or production of an asset that necessarily 
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its 
intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost 
of the asset. Borrowing costs consist of interest and 
other costs that the Company incurs in connection 
with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs also 
include exchange differences to the extent regarded 
as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

	 All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in 
which they occur and are recognised in the statement 
of profit and loss using the effective interest method. 

k)	 Leases
	 The determination of whether an arrangement is 

(or contains) a lease is based on the substance of 
the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The 
arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of 
the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific 
asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right 
to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not 
explicitly specified in an arrangement.

	 For arrangements entered into prior to 1 April 2016, the 
Company has determined whether the arrangements 
contain lease on the basis of facts and circumstances 
existing on the date of transition.

	 Company as a lessee 
	 A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance 

lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers 
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to 
ownership to the Company is classified as a finance 
lease. 

	 Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement 
of the lease at the inception date fair value of the 
leased property or, if lower, at the present value of 
the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are 
apportioned between finance charges and reduction 
of the lease liability so as toachieve a constant rate 
of interest on the remaining balanceof the liability. 
Finance charges are recognised in financecosts in the 
statement of profit and loss, unless they aredirectly 
attributable to qualifying assets, in which case 
theyare capitalized in accordance with the Company’s 
generalpolicy on the borrowing costs.

	 A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of 
theasset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty 
that theCompany will obtain ownership by the end 
of the leaseterm, the asset is depreciated over the 
shorter of theestimated useful life of the asset and 
the lease term.

	 Leases in which a significant portion of the risk and 
rewards of ownership are not transferred to the 
Company are classified as operating lease. Operating 
lease payments are recognised as an expense in 
the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line 
basis over the lease term unless the payments are 
structured to increase in line with the expected general 
inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected 
inflationary cost increases.

	 Company as a lessor

	 Leases in which the Company does not transfer 
substantiallyall the risks and rewards of ownership 
of an asset areclassified as operating leases. Rental 
income from operatinglease is recognised on a 
straight-line basis over the termof the relevant lease 
unless the receipts are structuredto increase inline 
with the expected general inflation tocompensate 
for the expected inflationary cost increases.Initial 
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging 
anoperating lease are added to the carrying amount 
of theleased asset and recognised over the lease term 
on thesame basis as rental income.

	 Leases are classified as finance leases when 
substantiallyall the risks and rewards of ownership 
transfer from theCompany to the lessee. Amounts 
due from lessees underfinance leases are recorded 
as receivables at the Company’s net investment 
in the leases. Finance lease income isallocated to 
accounting periods so as to reflect a constantperiodic 
rate of return on the net investment outstanding 
inrespect of the lease.

l)	 Income taxes

	 Current income tax

	 Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured 
at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid 
to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax 
laws used to compute the amount are those that are 
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

	 Current income tax relating to items recognized outside 
of profit or loss is recognized outside of profit or loss 
[either in other comprehensive income (OCI) or in 
equity]. Current tax items are recognized in correlation 
to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in 
equity. Management periodically evaluates positions 
taken in the tax returns with respect to situations 
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to 
interpretation and establishes provisions where 
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be 
paid to the tax authorities.
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	 Deferred tax

	 Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on 
temporary differences between the tax bases of assets 
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial 
reporting purposes at the reporting date.

	 Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable 
temporary differences, except:

•	 when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial 
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a 
transaction that is not a business combination and, 
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the 
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

•	 in respect of taxable temporary differences between 
the carrying amount and tax bases of investments 
in subsidiaries, branches, associates and interests 
in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal 
of the temporary differences can be controlled by 
the Company and it is probable that the temporary 
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

	 Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible 
temporary differences, the carry forward of unused 
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax 
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable 
that taxable profit will be available against which 
the deductible temporary differences, and the carry 
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses 
can be utilised, except:

•	 when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible 
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition 
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not 
a business combination and, at the time of the 
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor 
taxable profit or loss;

•	 In respect of deductible temporary differences 
between the carrying amount and tax bases of 
investments in subsidiaries, branches, associates 
and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are 
recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the 
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable 
future and taxable profit will be available against which 
the temporary differences can be utilised.

	 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed 
at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that 
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit 
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred 
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax 
assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are 
recognised to the extent that it has become probable 

that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax 
asset to be recovered.

	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the 
tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when 
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based 
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted 
or substantively enacted as at the reporting date.

	 Current tax and deferred tax relating to items 
recognised outside profit or loss are recognised 
outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive 
income or in equity). 

	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they 
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation 
authority and the Company intends to settle its current 
tax assets and tax liabilities on a net basis.

m)	 Employee benefits

	 Short-term obligations

	 Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits that are expected to be settled 
wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in 
which the employees render the related service are 
recognised in respect of employees’ services up to 
the end of the reporting period and are measured at 
the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities 
are settled. The liabilities are presented as current 
employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

	 Other long-term employee benefit obligations

	 The liabilities for earned leave and sick leave are not 
expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after 
the end of the period in which the employees render 
the related service.They are therefore measured as 
thepresent value of expected future payments to be 
madein respect of services provided by employees up 
to theend of the reporting period using the projected 
an itcredit method. The benefits are discounted 
using themarket yields at the end of the reporting 
period thathave terms approximating to the terms of 
the relatedobligation. Remeasurements as a result 
of experienced judgments and changes in actuarial 
assumptions arerecognised in profit or loss.

	 The obligations are presented as current liabilitiesin 
the balance sheet if the entity does not have 
anunconditional right to defer settlement for at 
leasttwelve months after the reporting period, 
regardlessof when the actual settlement is expected 
to occur.
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	 Post-employment obligations

	 The Company operates the following post-employment 
schemes:

a.	 Defined benefit plans in the nature of gratuity, and

b.	 Defined contribution plans such as provident fund.

	 Gratuity obligations

	 The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in 
respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present 
value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of 
the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. 
The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually 
by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

	 The present value of the defined benefit obligation 
denominated in Indian Rupees is determined by 
discounting the estimated future cash outflows by 
reference to market yields at the end of the reporting 
period on government bonds that have terms 
approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

	 The net interest cost is calculated by applying the 
discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit 
obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is 
included in employee benefit expense in the statement 
of profit and loss.

	 Remeasurement gains and losses arising from 
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial 
assumptions are recognised in the period in which 
they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. 
They are included in retained earnings in the 
statement of changes in equity and in the balance 
sheet.

	 Changes in the present value of the defined benefit 
obligationresulting from plan amendments or 
curtailments arerecognised immediately in profit or 
loss as past service cost.

	 Defined contribution plans

	 The company pays provident fund contributions to 
publiclyadministered provident funds as per local 
regulations.The company has no further payment 
obligations oncethe contributions have been paid. 
The contributions areaccounted for as defined 
contribution plans and thecontributions are recognised 
as employee benefit expensewhen they are due. 

n)	 Impairment of non-financial assets

	 Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite 
useful life are not subject to amortisation and are 
tested annually for impairment or more frequently 

if events or changes in circumstances indicate that 
they might be impaired. Other assets are tested 
for impairment whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may 
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised 
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount 
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable 
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less 
costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes 
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the 
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable 
cash inflows which are largely independent of the 
cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets 
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other 
than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed 
for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of 
each reporting period.

o)	 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

	 Provisions are recognized when the Company has a 
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of 
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made 
of the amount of the obligation. When the Company 
expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, 
the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset, 
but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. 
The expense relating to a provision is presented in the 
statement of profit and loss, net of any reimbursement.

	 If the effect of the time value of money is material, 
provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate 
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to 
the liability. The unwinding of discount is recognized 
in the statement of profit and loss as a finance cost.

	 Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting 
period and adjusted to reflect the current best 
estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of 
resources would be required to settle the obligation, 
the provision is reversed.

	 A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises 
from past events whose existence will be confirmed 
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events beyond the control of the 
Company or a present obligation that is not recognised 
because it is not probable that an outflow of resources 
will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent 
liability also arises in extremely rare cases where 
there is a liability that cannot be recognised because 
it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does 
not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its 
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existence in the financial statements.

	 Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed in 
the financial statements when an inflow of economic 
benefits is probable.

p)	 Financial instruments

	 A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to 
a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability 
or equity instrument of another entity.

	 Financial assets

	 Initial recognition and measurement

	 All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value 
plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair 
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are 
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

	 Subsequent measurement 

	 For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial 
assets are classified into four categories:

•	 Debt instruments at amortised cost

•	 Debt instruments at fair value through other 
comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

•	 Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments 
at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

•	 Equity instruments measured at fair value through 
other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

i.	 Debt instruments at amortised cost

	 A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost, 
if both the following conditions are met:

a.	 The asset is held within a business model whose 
objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual 
cash flows, and 

b.	 Contractual terms of the asset that give rise on 
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments 
of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount 
outstanding.

	 This category is most relevant to the Company. 
After initial measurement, such financial assets are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost 
is calculated by taking into account any discount or 
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are 
an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is 
included in finance income in the statement of profit 
and loss. The losses arising from impairment are 

recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

ii.	 Debt instruments at FVTOCI

	 A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if 
both of the following criteria are met:

a.	 The objective of the business model is achieved 
bothby collecting contractual cash flows and selling 
thefinancial assets, and

b.	 The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

	 Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI 
categoryare measured initially as well as at each 
reporting dateat fair value. Fair value movements are 
recognized inthe other comprehensive income (OCI). 
However, theCompany recognizes interest income, 
impairment lossesand reversals and foreign exchange 
gain or loss in thestatement of profit and loss. On 
derecognition of the asset,cumulative gain or loss 
previously recognised in OCI isreclassified from the 
equity to statement of profit and loss.Interest earned 
whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument isreported as 
interest income using the EIR method.

iii.	 Debt instruments at FVTPL

	 FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any 
debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for 
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is 
classified as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are 
measured at fair value with all changes recognized 
in the statement of profit and loss.

iv.	 Equity investments

	 All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are 
measured at fair value. Equity instruments which 
are held for trading and contingent consideration 
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination 
to which Ind AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. 
For all other equity instruments, the Company may 
make an irrevocable election to present in other 
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the 
fair value. The Company makes such election on an 
instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is 
made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. 

	 If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument 
as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the 
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in 
the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from 
OCI to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of 
investment. However, the Company may transfer the 
cumulative gain or loss within equity.
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	 Equity instruments included within the FVTPL 
category are measured at fair value with all changes 
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

	 Equity investment in subsidiaries and joint ventures 
arecarried at historical cost as per the accounting 
policychoice given by Ind AS 27.

	 Derecognition

	 A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a 
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial 
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from 
the Company’sbalance sheet) when:

•	 The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have 
expired, or

•	 The Company has transferred its rights to receive 
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an 
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full 
without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-
through’ arrangementand either (a) the Company has 
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of 
the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred 
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of 
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

	 Impairment of financial assets

	 In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies 
expected credit loss (ECL) model for    measurement 
and recognition of impairment loss on the following 
financial assets:

•	 Financial assets that are debt instruments, and 
are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt 
securities and deposits;

•	 Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive 
cash or another financial asset that result from 
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 18.

	 The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for 
recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade 
receivables. The application of simplified approach 
does not require the Company to track changes in 
credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss 
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting 
date, right from its initial recognition. 

	 For recognition of impairment loss on other financial 
assets and risk exposure, the Company determines 
whether there has been a significant increase in the 
credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has 
not increased significantly, twelve month ECL is used 
to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk 

has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in 
the subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument 
improves such that there is no longer a significant 
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then 
the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss 
allowance based on a twelve month ECL.

	 Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting 
from all possible default events over the expected 
life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a 
portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default 
events that are possible within 12 months after the 
reporting date.

	 Financial liabilities

	 Initial recognition and measurement

	 All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair 
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and 
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 
The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and 
other payables and borrowings, etc.

	 Subsequent measurement

	 The measurement of financial liabilities depends on 
their classification, as described below:

i.	 Financial liabilities at FVTPL

	 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial 
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair 
value through profit or loss.	 Financial liabilities are 
classified as held for trading if they are incurred for 
the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.

ii.	 Loans and borrowings

	 This is the category most relevant to the Company. 
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and 
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are 
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are 
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation 
process.

	 Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account 
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees 
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The 
EIR amortisationis included as finance costs in the 
statement of profit and loss.

	 Derecognition

	 A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation 
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under the liability is discharged or cancelled or 
expires.

	 Offsetting of financial instruments 

	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset 
and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet 
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset 
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to 
settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle 
the liabilities simultaneously.

q)	 Financial guarantee contracts

	 A financial guarantee contract is a contract that 
requires the issuer to make specified payments to 
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a 
specified debtor fails to make payments when due in 
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

	 Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company 
are measured at their fair values and recognised as 
income in the statement of profit and loss.

	 Where guarantees in relation to loans or other 
payables of group companies are provided for no 
compensation, the fair value are accounted for 
as contributions and recognised as part of cost of 
investment.

r)	 Accounting for foreign currency transactions

	 Items included in the financial statements of the 
Company are measured using the currency of the 
primary economic environment in which the Company 
operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial 
statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), 
which is the Company’s presentation currency and 
functional currency.

	 Transactions in currencies other than the functional 
currency are translated into the functional currency 
at the exchange rates that approximates the rate 
as at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets 
and liabilities denominated in other currencies are 
translated into the functional currency at exchange 
rates prevailing on the reporting date. Non-monetary 
assets and liabilities denominated in other currencies 
and measured at historical cost or fair value are 
translated at the exchange rates prevailing on the 
dates on which such values were determined.

	 All exchange differences are included in statement of 
profit and loss. 

s)	 Cash and cash equivalents

	 Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet 

comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term 
deposits with an original maturity of three months 
or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of 
changes in value. For the purpose of the statement 
of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of 
cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net 
of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered 
an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

t)	 Dividends

	 The Company recognises a liability to make cash 
distributions to equity holders of the Company when 
the distribution is authorised and the distribution 
is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As 
per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is 
authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A 
corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

u)	 Earnings per share

	 Basic earnings per share

	 Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the 
profit attributable to the shareholders of the Company 
by the weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the financial year.

	 Diluted earnings per share

	 Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the 
profit attributable to the shareholders of the Company 
(after adjusting the corresponding income/ charge for 
dilutive potential equity shares, if any) by the weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding during 
the financial year plus the weighted average number of 
additional equity shares that would have been issued 
on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares.

4.	 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and 
assumptions

	 The preparation of the Company’s financial statements 
requires management to make judgments, estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, 
accompanying disclosures and the disclosure 
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these 
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes 
that require a material adjustment to the carrying 
amount of assets or liabilities affected in future 
periods.

	 Estimates and assumptions

	 The key assumptions concerning the future and other 
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting 
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material 
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adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities within the next financial year, are described 
below. The Company based its assumptions and 
estimates on parameters available when the financial 
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances 
and assumptions about future developments, 
however, may change due to market changes or 
circumstances arising that are beyond the control 
of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the 
assumptions when they occur.

	 Income taxes

	 The Company is subject to income tax laws as 
applicable in India. Significant judgment is required 
in determining provision for income taxes. There are 
many transactions and calculations for which the 
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the 
ordinary course of business. The Company recognizes 
liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates 
of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the 
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the 
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences 
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions 
in the period in which such determination is made. 

	 In assessing the reliability of deferred tax assets, 
management considers whether it is probable, that 
some portion, or all, of the deferred tax assets will 
not be realised. The ultimate realization of deferred 
tax assets is dependent upon the generation of 
future taxable income during the periods in which 
the temporary differences become deductible. 
Management considers the projected future taxable 
income and tax planning strategies in making this 
assessment. Based on the level of historical taxable 
income and projections for future taxable incomes 
over the periods in which the deferred tax assets are 
deductible, management believes that it is probable 
that the Company will be able to realize the benefits 
of those deductible differences in future.

	 Useful lives of property, plant and equipment (‘PPE’) 
and intangible assets

	 Management reviews the estimated useful lives and 
residual value of PPE and Intangibles at the end of 

each reporting period. Factors such as changes in the 
expected level of usage, technological developments 
and product life-cycle, could significantly impact the 
economic useful lives and the residual values of these 
assets. Consequently, the future depreciation charge 
could be revised and may have an impact on the profit 
of the future years.

	 Employee benefit obligations

	 The cost of the defined benefit obligations are 
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial 
valuation involves making various assumptions that 
may differ from actual developments in the future. 
These include the determination of the discount rate, 
future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the 
complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term 
nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive 
to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are 
reviewed at each reporting date.

	 The parameter most subject to change is the discount 
rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for 
plans operated in India, the management considers 
the interest rates of government bonds in currencies 
consistent with the currencies of the post-employment 
benefit obligation. 

	 The mortality rate is based on publicly available 
mortality tables for the specific countries. Those 
mortality tables tend to change only at interval in 
response to demographic changes. Future salary 
increases and gratuity increases are based on 
expected future inflation rates.  Further details about 
gratuity obligations are given in Note No. 34.

	 Contingencies

	 Management judgment of contingencies is based 
on the internal assessments and opinion from the 
consultants for the possible outflow of resources, if 
any.

5.	 Recent accounting pronouncements

	 Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new 
standard or amendments to the existing standards 
have been incorporated in the financial statements, 
wherever applicable. 
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended  31st March 2023

(All amounts in Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)		

6	 Property, plant and equipment
	 Particulars	 Furniture and 	 Office	 Computer	 Vehicle	 P & M	 Total
			  Fixtures	 Equipments		

	 Deemed Cost 						    
	 At 31 March 2023	  7.84 	  11.23 	  3.05 	  1.88 	  6.00 	  29.99 
	 Additions	  -   	  1.01 	  0.82 	  -   	  -   	  1.83 
	 Gross block opening adjustment*	  -   	  6.25 	  6.30 	  10.52 	  -   	  23.07 
	 Disposals / adjustments	  -   	  -   	  -   	  7.45 	  -   	  7.45 
	 At 31 March 2024	  7.84 	  18.48 	  10.17 	  4.95 	  6.00 	  47.44 
	 Depreciation						    
	 At 31 March 2023	  3.04 	  7.78 	  1.33 	  1.88 	  0.83 	  14.85 
	 Charge for the year	  0.74 	  0.76 	  0.59 	  -   	  0.16 	  2.25 
	 Gross block opening adjustment*	  0.08 	  6.15 	  7.09 	  9.90 	  (0.83)	  22.38 
	 Disposals / adjustments	  -   	  -   	  -   	  7.08 	  -   	  7.08 
	 At 31 March 2024	  3.86 	  14.68 	  9.00 	  4.70 	  0.17 	  32.41 
						   
	 Net Block						    
	 At 31 March 2023	  4.80 	  3.45 	  1.72 	  -   	  5.17 	  15.14 
	 At 31 March 2024	  3.98 	  3.81 	  1.17 	  0.25 	  5.83 	  15.03 
 
 
Note : 7 Intangible assets under Development
			  CRM Software	 Website under	 Total
				   development
	 At 31 March 2023	  69.71 	  20.40 	  90.11 
	 Additions	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Disposals / adjustments	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 At 31 March 2024	 69.71 	  20.40 	  90.11 
	 Net block			 

	
	 At 31 March 2023	  69.71 	  20.40 	  90.11 

	 At 31 March 2024	  69.71 	  20.40 	  90.11 

Note : 8 Financial assets - Investments
				   As at 31st	 As at 31st	

			  March 2024	 March 2023
(A)	 Investment in Subsidiary	 	 	
	 Equity instruments (unquoted)	 	 	
	 15,95,000 (31 March 2020: 15,95,000); FV of RS.10 per share	  	 926.30 	  926.30 
	 Total			    926.30 	  926.30 

				 
	  Aggregate amount of quoted investments 	  	 	 -   	  -   
	  Aggregate market value of quoted investments 	  	 	 -   	  -   
	  Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 	  	 	 926.30 	  926.30 
	  Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments
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Note: 9 Financial assets - Loans
		  (valued at lower of cost and net realizable value)		  As at 31st		  As at 31st
				   March 2024	 March 2023
	 (a) Non Current Loans (Unsecured, Considered Good)	 	 	
	 	Loans to related parties (subsidiary)	  	 `-   	 -
	 Security Deposits *	 	   1.15 	  1.15 
 	 Loans and advances to employees	 	  -   
	 Total Non Current Loans	  	  1.15 	  1.15 
 	 (b) Current Loans (Unsecured, Considered Good)	 	 	
	 Advances to related parties (subsidiary)	  	 -   	 -
	 Advances Recoverable 		   -   	 -
	 Security Deposits	  	 -   	 - 
	 Loans and advances to employees	  	 -   	 -
	 Total Current Loans	  	 -   	 -	

	
Note : 10 Other non-current assets
					    As at 31st		  As at 31st
					    March 2024		  March 2023
	 Capital advances (unsecured, considered good)	  		  -   		   -   
	 Accrued Income	 	  	 -   	 	  -   
	 Prepaid expenses	  		  -   		  -
	 Total
	  		  -   		  -
Note : 11 Inventories
					    As at 31st		  As at 31st
					    March 2024		  March 2023
	 (valued at lower of cost and net realizable value)		
	 Raw Materials*	  		  -   		   -   
	 Work-in-Progress			    -   	  	 -   
	 Finished Goods	  	 	 -   	 	  -   
	 Stores and Spares			    -   		   -   
	 Total			    -   		   -   

Note : 12 Financial assets - Trade receivables 
 						     As at 31st	 As at 31st
						     March 2024	 March 2023
	 Trade receivables	 	 	  	 53.57 	  85.78 
		
	 Total	  			  53.57 	  85.78 
		 Break-up of security details		
	 Secured, considered  good				     -   	  -   
	 Unsecured, considered  good	  	 	 	53.51 	  85.78 
	 Doubtful 	 	 	 	 0.07 	  -   
	 Total				    53.57 	  85.78 
	 Less : Allowance for bad and doubtful debts	  	 	 	 0.07 	  -   
	 Total	  			  53.51 	  85.78
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Note : 13 Financial assets - Cash and cash equivalents
					    As at 31st		  As at 31st
					    March 2024		  March 2023

	 Balances with banks:
	 -In current accounts	  	 	 23.27 	  	 33.52 
	 -in unpaid dividend accounts 	  	 	 0.71 	 	  0.71 
	 -Deposits with original maturity of 3 months or less		   -   		   -   
	 Cash in hand	 	 	  1.42 	  	 15.38 
	 Total			    25.40 	  	 49.62 

Note : 14 Financial assets - Other Bank Balances
					    As at 31st		  As at 31st
					    March 2024		  March 2023

	 Deposits with original maturity for more than 3 months 
	 but not more than 12 months 	  	 	 4.77 	  	 2.50 
		 Total			    4.77 		   2.50 
 
Note : 15 Financial assets - Other Current Financial Assets
					    As at 31st		  As at 31st	

				   March 2024		  March 2023
	 Interest Accrued on FDR 	 	 	  0.30	  	  1.91 
		 Total			    0.30 	  	 1.91 
		
Note : 16 Other current assets 
 					    As at 31st		  As at 31st
					    March 2024		  March 2023

	 Balances with statutory / government authorities	  	 	 27.01 	  39.29 
	 Unbilled Revenue			    0.20 	  -   
	 Advances  to Supplier/employees	  	 	 4.00 	  0.60 
	 Total			    31.21 	  39.89 

17	 Share capital 			   As at 31st 	 As at 31st
					    March 2024	 March 2023
	 Authorised share capital					   
	 15,000,000 (31 March 2020 : 15,000,000) Equity 
	 	Shares of Rs. 10/- each	  	 	  1,500 	 	 1,500 
	 Total	  		  1,500 		  1,500 	

	
	 Issued, Subscribed and fully paid up shares	 	 	 	 	
	 1,02,97,600 (31 March 2020 : 1,02,97,600) Equity Shares 
	 of Rs. 10/- each, fully paid up	  	 	  1,029.76 	 	  1,029.76 
 	 Add: Forfeited Shares - Amount Originally Paid up	  	 -   		  - 
	
	 Total	  		   1,029.76 		   1,029.76 
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(a)	 Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of reporting period

		 Particulars	 As at 31st March 2024	 As at 31st March 2023	
			

			  No.	 Rs. in Lakhs	 No.	 Rs. in Lakhs
	 Equity Shares at the beginning of the year	 1,029.76 	  1,029.76 	  1,029.76 	  1,029.76 
	 Add : Shares issued on exercise of 
	 preferential allotment during the year	  -   		   -   
	 Equity Shares at the end of the year	  1,029.76 	  1,029.76 	  1,029.76 	  1,029.76  

	 Terms/ rights attached to equity shares	 	 	 	

	 The company has only one class of equity shares having  par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity shares 
is entitled to one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividends only in Indian rupees. The dividend 
proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting.				  

	 In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets 
of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of 
equity shares held by the shareholders.	 	 	 	 	
	

(b)	 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

		 Particulars			  As at 31st March 2024			  As at 31st March 2023	    	
			  No.		 % Holding		  No.		  % Holding

	
	 (a) Virtual Software and Tranining Private Limited		   42,00,000 		  40.79%	  	 42,00,000 		  40.79%
	 (b) Gokul Naresh Tandan	  	 26,93,366 		  26.16%	  	 26,93,366 		  26.16%
	 (c ) Mohini Tandan		   3,46,717 		  3.37%		   3,46,717 		  3.37%
	 Total	  	 68,93,366 		  70.32%		   68,93,366 		  70.32%

Note : 18 Other Equity 
					    As at 31st		  As at 31st	

				   March 2024		  March 2023	
	

(i)	  Capital  Reserve			    20.00 	  	 20.00
(ii)	  Securities Premium			    -   		   - 
(iii)	 General reserve	 	 	  (2,169.61)	 	 (2,057.00)
(iv)	 Profit and Loss	  	 	 -   	 	  - 
	 Total	 	  	 (2,149.61)	 	  (2,037.00)
(i)	 Capital Reserve				  
	 Opening Balance	  		  20.00 		   20.00
	 Less : Issue of equity shares	  	 	 -   	 	  - 
	 Closing Balance			    20.00 		   20.00 	

		
(ii)	 Securities Premium				  
	 Opening Balance			    -   	
	 Add : Addition on Issue of equity shares	 	 	 	
	 Closing Balance			    -   	
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(iii)	 Retained earnings				  
	 Opening Balance	 	 	  (2,057.00)	 	  (1,964.16)
	 Add : Profit for the year	 	 	  (111.20)	 	  (91.98)
	 Add : Remeasurement of post employement benefit obligation, net of tax	  (1.41)	 	 (0.86)
	 Closing Balance	 	 	  (2,169.61)	 	  (2,057.00)

(iv)	 Other Reserves				  
	 Opening Balance			    -   	
	 Add : Change in fair value equity instruments measured at FVOCI	 	 	 	
	 Closing Balance				  
					  
	
Note : 19 Financial liabilities - Non-Current Borrowings 
					    As at 31st		  As at 31st	

				   March 2024		  March 2023	
Secured Loans	 	 	 	 	 	
Term Loans from Banks	 	 	  -   	 	 - 

	 Term Loans from Others	  		  -   		   - 
	 Total (A)			    -   		   - 	

	
	 Unsecured Loans	 	 	 	
	 Loans from Directors	 	 	  2,175.33 	 	  2,099.23 
	 Term Loans from Others Relative party	 	 	  -   	 	  - 
  	 Other Loan	  	 	 -   	 	  - 
  	 Total (B)			    2,175.33 		   2,099.23 
	 Total Borrowings [C=A+B]			    2,175.33 		   2,099.23 
	 Current Maturities 				  
	 Non-current	 	  	 2,175.33 	 	  2,099.23 
	
	 The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of borrowings and interest as at Balance Sheet date.
Note : 20 Other Financial Liabilities
				   As at 31st	 As at 31st	

			  March 2024	 March 2023
		 Financial Guarantee Obligation 	 	 	 	

Total	  	 -   	 -
	 Current (included in Note : 26)	  	 -   		

Non-current	  	 -	 -

Note : 21 Provisions
					    As at 31st		  As at 31st
					    March 2024		  March 2023

	 Provision for gratuity 	 	 	  17.40 	 	  14.05 
	 Provision for Leave Encashment	 	 	  2.96 	 	  2.19 
	 Total	 	 	  20.36 	 	  16.24
	 Current		   	 1.23 		   1.02 
	 Non-current	 	  	 19.13 	 	  15.22 

Note : 22 Financial liabilities - Trade Payables			    	 As at 31st	 As at 31st
						     March 2024	 March 2023

	 Total outstanding dues of micro & small enterprises*	 	  	 -   	 0.67 
	 	Others	 	  	 	 64.47 	  95.23 
	 Total		   		  64.47 	 95.91
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Note : 23 Other financial liabilities 
						     As at 31st	 As at 31st
						     March 2024	 March 2023

	 Current Maturities of Non-Current Borrowings (refer to Note : 19)	  	 -   	 -

	 Unclaimed Dividend	 	 	 	  0.71 	 0.71
	 Interest accrued but not due on borrowings	 	  	 	 -   	 -	

	
	 Total	 	  	 	 0.71 	 0.71
 
Note : 24 Other current liabilities 
					    As at 31st		  As at 31st
					    March 2024		  March 2023

	 Statutory Dues Payable	 	  	 1.62 	 	  2.67 
	 Salary Payable		   	 3.93 		   3.43 
	 Other Payables	 	  	 0.47 	 	  0.65 
	 	Audit Fee Payable	 	 	  0.75 	 	  0.81 
	 Total			    6.76 		   7.57 

Note : 25 Current tax libilities (Net) 
					    As at 31st		  As at 31st
					    March 2024		  March 2023

	 Income tax Payable	 	  	 - 	 	  -

26.	 Revenue from operations
			  As at 31st	 As at 31st	

		 March 2024	 March 2023	
	

	 Sales of Products (Including Excise Duty)	  138.73 	  120.10 
	 Total	  138.73 	  120.10 

27.	 Other Income	  31st March 2024 	 31st March 2023 
	 Interest received	  0.70 	  -   
	 Total	  0.70 	  -   

28.	 Purchase of Services	    31st March 2024 	 31st March 2023
	 Purchases	  113.55 	  88.16 

	 Total Cost of Purchase of Services [A]	  113.55 	  88.16 

29.	 Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, 

	 Work-in-Progress and Stock-in-Trade	     31st March 2024 	 31st March 2023
	 Opening Stock of Finished Goods	  -   	 	

Less: Closing Stock of Finished Goods	 	 	
	Total (A)	  - 	 -	
	Opening Stock of Work-in-Progress		   -   	
	Less: Closing Stock of Work-in-Progress	 	 	
	

	 Total (B)	  -   	 -   
	 Total Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, 
	 Work-in-Progress and Stock-in-Trade [A+B]	  -   	  -
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30.	 Employee Benefit Expenses	    31st March 2024 	 31st March 2023
	 Salaries, Wages, Bonus and Other Benefits	  50.73 	  46.96 
	 Gratuity	  2.25 	  1.81 
	 Leave Compensation	  0.47 	  0.34 
	 Contribution to Provident and Other Funds	  0.49 	  0.36 
	 Total	  53.94 	  49.47 

31.	 Finance Costs	    31st March 2024 	 31st March 2023
	 Interest Expenses	 	 - 
	 Other Financial Charges	 	 -   
	 Total	  -   	 - 

32.	 Depreciation and amortization expenses	    31st March 2024 	 31st March 2023

	 Depreciation on Property Plant & Equipment 
	 (Read with Note No. 7)	  2.25 	  2.84 
	 Gross block opening depreciation adjustment 
	 (Read with Note No. 7)	  (0.68)	  -   
	 Total	  1.57 	  2.84 

33.	 Other Expenses	    31st March 2024 	 31st March 2023

	 Administrative and Selling Expenses			 
Advance to supplier written off	  0.40 	  -   

	 Assets written off	  18.23 	  -   
	 Advertisement and Publicity	  0.29 	  0.26 
	 Auditors’ Remuneration & Refreshment	  1.45 	  0.75 
	 Bank Charges	  0.00 	  -   
	 Business Promotion	  -   	  0.50 
	 Communication Expense	  0.12 	  0.10 
	 Conveyance Expenses	  1.06 	  0.54 
	 Directors Sitting Fees	  1.13 	  1.60 
	 Diwali Expenses	  0.24 	  0.31 
	 Domain Expenses	  0.25 	  0.52 
	 Electricity & Water Expenses	  1.62 	  1.71 
	 Fees and Subscription Expense	  4.67 	  4.64 
	 Legal & Professional Fees	 42.61 	  49.92 
	 Loss on sale of assets	  0.17 	  -   
	 Miscelleneous Expenses	  0.07 	  0.05 
	 Printing & Stationery	  0.26 	  0.19 
	 Provision for bad and doubtful debts	  0.07 	  -   
	 Rates & Taxes	 0.52 	  0.93 
	 Rent	  6.67 	  5.39 
	 Repair & Maintenance-Office	 1.48 	  2.13 
	 Server Expenses	  0.27 	  1.74 
	 Staff Recuriter Expenses	  -   	  0.32 
	 Total Other Expenses 	 81.57 	  71.60 
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34.	 Exceptional Items	   31st March 2024 	 31st March 2023

	 Prior Period Expenses	 	  - 
	 Total	  -   	  - 

	 Payment to auditor	   31st March 2024 	 31st March 2023 
	 i) Audit fees	  1.45 	  0.75 
 	 ii) Fees for income tax matters	  -   	 -   
	 iii) Certification charges & others	  -   	  -   
	 Total	  1.45 	  0.75 
 
		 *Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses	   31st March 2024 	 31st March 2023

	 Gross Amount required to be spent by the Company 
	 (as per Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013)	  -   	  -   
	 Amount spent during the year			 

	
	 i) Construction/acquisition of any assets	  -   	  -   
	 ii) On purposes other than (i) above
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36. 	  Employee benefit obligations 		

 (A) 	 Defined benefit plans	 	 	
	“Gratuity:

	 The Compay has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service 
gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The company 
makes provision of such gratuity asset/liability in the books of accounts on basis of actuarial valuation for FY 2019-
2020 			 
	The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit and 
loss and the funded status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the respective plans:		
		

(i) 	 Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:		
		

	 Particulars 	 Gratuity Funded 	  Leave Encashment 
	 Defined benefit obligation at 31 March 2023 	 14.05 	  2.19 
 	 Interest expense 	 1.05 	  0.16 
 	 Current service cost 	 1.19 	  0.30 
 	 Benefits paid 	 -   	  -   
 	 Actuarial (gain)/ loss 	 1.11 	  0.30 
 	 Defined benefit obligation at 31 March 2024 	 17.40 	  2.96 
	
 (ii) 	  The amount to be recognized in the Balance Sheet: 			 

	
	 Particulars 	 Gratuity Funded 	  Leave Encashment 
	 Net (assets) / liability recognized in balance 
	 sheet as provision as at 31 March 2023	 14.05 	  2.19 
	 Present value of obligation 	 17.40 	  2.96 
	 Fair value of plan assets                       	 -   	  -   
	 Net (assets) / liability recognized in balance sheet 
	 as provision as at 31 March 2024	 17.40 	  2.96 
		
 (iii) 	  Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss: 	

	 Particulars 	 Gratuity Funded 	  Leave Encashment 
	 Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
	 Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 
	 for year ended 31 March 2023	 1.81 	  0.34 
	 Interest Cost	 1.05 	  0.16 
	 Current service cost	 1.19 	  0.30 
	 Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 
	 for year ended 31 March 2024	 2.25 	  0.47 

(iv) 	  Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income: 			 
	

	 Particulars 	 Gratuity Funded 	  Leave Encashment 

	 Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 
	 Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 
	 for year ended 31 March 2023	  0.58 	  0.28 
	 Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations	 1.11 	  0.30 
	 Actuarial (gain)/ loss on plan assets	 -   	  -   
	 Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 
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	 for year ended 31 March 2024	 1.11 	  0.30 

(v) 	 Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:		
	 Particulars 	 Gratuity Funded 	  Leave Encashment 
	 Expected return on plan assets 	 -   	  - 
 	 Actuarial gain/(loss) 	 -   	  - 
 	 Fair value of plan assets at 31 March 2023 	 -   	  - 
 	 Expected return on plan assets 	 -   	  - 
 	 Actuarial gain/(loss) 	  -   	  - 
 	 Fair value of plan assets at 31 March 2024 	 -   	  - 		
 (vi) 	 The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:		

		
		 Particulars			   As at 31st		  As at 31st
					    March 2024		  March 2023

	 Investment Details 	 	  	  Gratuity 	  	 Gratuity 
 	 Investment with Insurer 	 	 	 0%	 	 0%

(vii) 	 The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity & leave encashment obligations for the Company’s 
plans are shown below:

	 Gratuity & Leave Encashment 

		 Particulars			   As at 31st		  As at 31st
					    March 2024		  March 2023

	   Average Past Service (Years) 	 	  	 12.30 	  	 13.50 
 	 Average remaining working life (Years) 	 	 	  15.10 	 	  14.30 
 	 Average Age (Years) 	 	  	 42.90 	  	 43.70 
 	 Weighted average duration (Years) - Gratuity 	 	  	 10.00 	  	 11.00 
 	 Weighted average duration (Years) - Leave Encashment 	 	  11.00 	 	  12.00 
 	 Discounting rate                                 	 	 	 7.25%	 	 7.50%
	 Salary Growth Rate 	 	 	 5.00% PA	 	 5.00% PA

(viii) 	 Sensitivity Analysis 				  
	 Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate and 

expected salary increase rate. Effect of change in mortality rate is negligible. Please note that the sensitivity analysis 
presented below may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that 
the change in assumption would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated. 
The results of sensitivity analysis are given below:				  

				 
	 Particulars 		   31st March, 2024 		  31st March, 2023 	
			   Gratuity 	  Leave 	  Gratuity 	  Leave 
			  Funded	 Encashment	 Funded	 Encashment

  	  Liability with 1% increase in Discount Rate 	  16.24 	  2.74 	  10.78 	  1.69 
 	 Liability with 1% decrease in Discount Rate 	  18.69 	  3.20 	  12.62 	  2.00 
 	 Liability with 1% increase in Salary Growth Rate 	  18.71 	  3.20 	  12.64 	  2.01 
 	 Liability with 1% decrease in Salary Growth Rate 	  16.21 	  2.74 	  10.75 	  1.69 
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(B) 	 Defined contribution plans 			  31 March 2024	 31 March 2023
	  Employer’s Contribution to Provident Fund 	 	 	   0.49 	  0.36 
  	 Employer’s Contribution to ESI 	 	  	 - 	  - 
 	 Employer’s Contribution to NPS 	 	 	  - 	  - 
 	 Total 			   0.49 	  0.36 

37.	 Segment information				  

	 The Company’s operations predominately relate to empower business and learning communities with rich “knowledge-
on demand”. The Company is engaged in pioneering Broadband, Virtual event & proving mobile roaming services 
& solutions.	 	 	 	

	 Geographical Information				  

	 Particulars		 31st March 2024		  31st March 2023

1. 	 Revenue from external customers				  
	 - Within India	 	   138.73 	  	 120.10 
 	 - Outside India	 	  -   	  	 -   
	 Total revenue per statement of profit and loss		   138.73 	  	 120.10 
	 The revenue information above is based on the 
	 locations of the customers				  
 
2. 	 Non-current operating assets			   	
	 - Within India	 	   105.14 	  	 105.25 
	 - Outside India	 	  -   	 	  -   
	 Total		   105.14 	  	 105.25 
	 Non-current operating assets for this purpose consist of property, plant and equipment,CWIP, investment properties 

and intangible assets.
 
38 A. Related Party Disclosures:					   

In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS - 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ the names of the related parties where 
control exists/ able to exercise significant influence along with the aggregate transactions and year end balances 
with them as identified by the management in the ordinary course of business and on arms’ length basis are given 
below:				     

(a)	 Subsidiary Companies :			 
	 Roam1 Telecom Limited

1	 Mr. Gokul Naresh Tandan	 Director	

2	 Mr. Rajendra V. Kulkarni	 Director	

3	 Ms Aashima Puri	 Director (Resigned 28/08/2023)	 	

4	 Ms. Geeta Singh	 Director (Appointed on 28/08/2023)	 	

5	 Mr. Vikram Grover	 Director (Appointed on 12/08/2022)	

6	 Ms. Mukta Ahuja	 Company Secretary 	
7	 Mr. Athar Ahmad	 CFO	 	
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(c)	 Enterprises over which KMP/ relatives of KMP exercise significant influence :-

1	 M/S.HEAL YOUR PAWS PET SERVICES LLP	 Gokul Naresh Tandan is Designated Partner	
2	 M/S GOTO CUSTOMER SERVICES PVT LTD	 Gokul  Naresh Tandan is Director	
3	 M/S VIRTUAL SOFTWARE & TRAINING  PVT LTD.	 Gokul  Naresh Tandan is Director	
4	 M/S ENHANCED COMMUNICATIONS & TECHNOLOGIES PVT LTD 	 Gokul  Naresh Tandan is Director
5	 M/S ROAM1 TELECOM LIMITED	 Gokul  Naresh Tandan is Director
6	 M/s. CLOUDCONNECT COMMUNICATIONS PRIVATELIMITED	 Gokul  Naresh Tandan is Director
7	 M/s.EMPYREAN BEVERAGES PRIVATE LIMITED	 Gokul  Naresh Tandan is Director
8	 M/s EMPYREAN SPIRITS PRIVATE LIMITED	 Gokul  Naresh Tandan is Director		

	

1	 M/s Prime Valve  India  LLP.	 Rajendra V Kulkarni is Designated Partner	

2	 M/s M R Capital Pvt. Ltd.	 Rajendra V Kulkarni is Director	

3	 M/s Vijay Stampings  Pvt. Ltd.	 Rajendra V Kulkarni is Director	

4	 M/s Marble Arch Estate Pvt. Ltd.	 Rajendra V Kulkarni is Director

5	 M/s Virtual Software & Training  Pvt Ltd.	 Rajendra V Kulkarni is Director	

6	 M/s CloudConnect Communications Pvt. Ltd.	 Rajendra V Kulkarni is Director

7	 M/s Empyrean Beverages Pvt. Ltd.	 Rajendra V Kulkarni is Director

8	 M/s Roam 1 Telecom Limited	 Rajendra V Kulkarni is Director	

1	 M/S Roam1 Telecom Limited	 Aashima Puri is a Director	
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B.	 Related Party Transactions:				  

	 Particulars	 Subsidiary	 KMP	 Other Related	 Total 
					    Parties		

	
			  2024	 2023		  2024	 2023		  2024	 2023		 2024		  2023
	 Short-term Employee Benefits	  -   	  -   	  	 -   	  -   		   -   	  -   	  	 -  	  	  -   
	 Interest Paid/Payable	  -   	  -   		   -   	  -   	  	 -   	  -   		   -  	  	  -   
	 Lease Rent Paid/Payable	  -   	  -   		   -   	  -   	  	 -   	  -   		   - 	   	  -   
	 Interest Received/Receivable	  -   	  -   		   -   	  -   		   -   	  -   		   -   		   -   
	 Director’s Remuneration	  -   	  -   		   -   				     -   	
	 Reimbursement of Expenses	  -   	  -   		   1.58 	  1.60 		   -   	  		  1.58 	  	 1.60 
	 Salary Paid 			    	 19.95 	  17.83 			    		 19.95 	  	 17.83 
	 Professional Fees	  -   	  -   		   -   	  -   		   -   		   	 -   		   -   
	 Rent Received/Receivable	  -   	  -   		   -   	  -   	   	  -   			    -   	  	 -   
	 JobWork Charges Paid/Payable	  -   	  -   		   -   	  -   		   -   	  		  -   		   -   
	 Purchases	  -   	  -   		   -   	  -   	  	  -   			    -   		   -   
	 Sales	  10.50 	  16.50 		   -   	  -   	    	  -   	  		 10.50 	  	 16.50 
	 Sale of PPE	  -   	  -   		   -   	  -   	   	  -   	  -   	    
	 Purchase of PPE	  -   	  -   		   -   	  -   	  	  -   	  -   	   
	 FINANCE	  -   	  -   		   -   	  -   	    	  -   	  -   	  
	 Unsecured Loans Received	  24.40 	  13.45 	  	118.60 	  124.60 		   -   	  		 143.00 	 	 138.05 
	 Unsecured Loans Paid back	  24.40 	  13.45 	  	 42.50 	  10.00 		   -   			   66.90 	  	 23.45 
	 Unsecured Loans Received Back	  -   	  -   		   -   	  -   	    	  -   	  -   	  	 -   
	 Short Term Loans Paid	  -   	  -   		   -   	  -   	  	  -   	  -   	  	 -   
	 Short Term Loans Received Back	  -   	  -   		   -   	  -   	   	  -   	  -   		   -   
	 Advances Paid	  -   	  -   		   -   	  -   	    	  -   	  -   		   -   
	 Advances Received Back	  -   	  -   		   -   	  -   	   	  -   	  -   		   -   
	 Corporate guarantee given	  -   	  -   		   -   	  -   	   	  -   	  -   		   -   
	 YEAR END BALANCES	  -   	  -   		   -   	  -   	    	  -   	  -   		   -   
	 Expenses Payable 	  -   	  -   		   1.69 	  2.14 	    	  -   	  		  1.69 		   2.14 
	 Expenses Receivable	  -   	  -   		   -   	  -   	    	  -   	  -   		   -   
	 Accounts Payable	  -   	  -   	  	 -   	  -   	    	  -   	  -   	  	 -   
	 Unsecured Loans Receivable	  -   	  -   		   -   	  -   	    	  -   	  -   		   -   

	 Unsecured Loans Payable 	  -   	  -   	  	2,175.33 	  2,099.23 	   	    	 2,175.33 		 2,099.23 

	 All transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length 
transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured. For the year ended 31 March 2024	 	 	
					  

39.		 Detail of loans given, Investment made and guarantee given covered U/s 186(4) of the Companies Act, 
2013								      

										       
	 	Particulars					    31st March 2024			  31st March 2023	

(a)	 Loan given by the Company for general business 
	 purposes as at balance sheet date :					      	 -   		   			   -   	

(b)	 Corporate guarantee given by the Company as at balance sheet date :								      
	 	For securing the credit facilities sanctioned to subsidiary company 		 	  -   	 	  	 	 	 -   	

40.	 Earnings per share (EPS)			 
	 Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders of the 

company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.	 	 	
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	 Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to the equity shareholders of the 

company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average 
number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity 
shares.			 

			
	 The following reflects the profit and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computation:			
	
	 Particulars			 

		 31 March 2024	 31 March 2023

	 Profit for the year	  (111.20)	  (91.98)
	 Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic 
	 EPS (absolute value in number)	  1,02,97,600 	  1,02,97,600 
	 Effect of dilution	  -   	  -   
	 Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating 
	 diluted EPS (absolute value in number)	  1,02,97,600 	  1,02,97,600 
	 Earnings per share	 	
 	 - Basic (on nominal value of Rs. 10 per share) Rs./ share	  (1.08)	  (0.89)
	  - Diluted (on nominal value of Rs. 10 per share) Rs./ share	  (1.08)	  (0.89)
			
41.	 Leases		
	 Finance Lease
		 The company does not have any finance lease as at March 31, 2024.		
.		
42.	 Capital commitments		
	 Particulars	 31st March 2024		 31st March 2023
	 Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be 
	 executed on capital account and not provided 
	 for (net of advances)	  - 	  	  -   
43.	 Contingent liabilities		
	 There is contingent liabilities of INR 5.80 lakh as on date of Balance sheet.	 	
44.	 Going Concern Basis
	 The company has accumulated losses of Rs. 2149.61 lakh as at 31st March, 2024 and its net worth as at that date 

is minus  Rs.1119.85 lakh. Although these events or conditions may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability 
to continue as going concern, however there are plans either for adding other line of business or renewal of existing 
operations. Accordingly the financial statements have been prepared on the basis of going concern assumption. 

45	 Reconciliation and confirmations		
	Balances of debtors and creditors and loans and advances to/from parties, security deposits are subject to 
reconciliations and confirmations.	 	 	
	

46	 Provision for tax		
	In view of the carried forward losses, no provision for current tax have been made during the year. Provision 
for Deferred tax has also not been recognized in the Balance Sheet in view of the fact that there exits no virtual 
certainty supported by convincing evidence that there will be available sufficient future profits against which such 
deferred tax asset can be adjusted.			 
			

47	 Intangible assets under development		
	The company is developing a CRM software called Live Webcast Suite for providing telecom services and a 
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Website. No amount has been capitalized during the year. The management is of the opinion that since the 
process is still going on & hence no amortization is required during this year.	 	

48	 Corporate Social Responsibilty		
	As per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, NIL amount is payable towards CSR expenses based on the 
loss for the period. Therefore, no Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) committee has been constituted by the 
Company.		

49	 Other Disclosures		
	The MCA vide notification dated 24th March 2021 has amended Schedule III to the Companies Act. 2013 in 
respect of certain disclosures which are applicable from 1st April 2021. The Company has incorporated the 
changes as per the said amendment in the financial statements and below disclosures are made in compliance of 
the said amendment :		

i) 	 The company has not received any Government Grants during the year		
ii) 	 As at year end, there was amount of Rs. NIL due to any small scale industrial undertaking	
iii) 	 The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during the period.	
iv) 	 The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the 

company for holding any Benami property.	
v) 	 The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the 

statutory period.	
vi) 	 The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including 

foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:	 	
	(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or	 	 	
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

vii) 	 The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding 
Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:	
	(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 	 	 	
(b)  provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

viii)	 The Company does not have any loans and advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMP and 
other related parties.	

ix)	 The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been 
subsequently surrendered or disclosed as income during the year as part of the on going tax assessments under 
the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 
1961).	 	

x)	 The Company has not been declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any 
government authority.		

xi)	 The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.	
xii)	 The Company do not have any title deeds of immovable properties not held in name of the company.	
xiii	 The Company does not have any investment property.	
xiv)	 The Company is not required to submit statement of current assets with the bank and therefore reconciliation of 

the statement filed by the company with bank and the books of accounts is not applicable.	
xv)	 The Company has not revalued any item of property, plant and equipment.	 	
xvi)	 The Company does not have any borrowings from banks and financial institutions.	 	 	

			
xvii)	 The Company have not entered into any scheme(s) of arrangements in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 during the financial year.	 	
xviii)	The Company has no borrowings from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets
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50.	 Financial Instruments measurements and disclosures

(a)	 Financial instruments by category :	

	 Particulars	  	 31st March 2024 	 31st March 2023
			  	  	 FVTPL 	  FVTOCI	  	Amortised	 FVTPL 	  FVTOCI	 Amortised 
						      		  Cost 						      Cost 
	 Financial Assets							     
	 Non-current						    
  	 Investment			    -   	  -   		   -   		   -   	  -   		   -   
  	 Loans			    -   	  -   		  1.15 		   -   	  -   	  	 1.15 
	 Current						    
  	 Trade receivables			    -   	  -   		  53.51 		  -   	  -   		   85.78 
  	 Cash and cash equivalents			    -   	  -   		  25.40	  	  -   	  -  		  	  49.62 
  	 Other bank balances			    -   	  -   		  4.77 	  	 -   	  -   		   2.50 
 	  Loans			    -   	  -   		  0.30 		   -   	  -   		   1.91 
	 Total			    -   	  -   	  	85.13	  	  -   	  -  	 		   140.97 
	 Financial liabilities						    
	 Non-current						    
  	 Borrowings		   -   	  -   		   	2,175.33 	  -   	  - 		    	 2,099.23 
  	 Other Financial Liabilities		   -   	  -   		   	 -   		   -   	  -   		   -   
	 Current						    
 	 Borrowings		   -   	  -   			    -   		   -   	  -   		   -   
  	 Trade payables		   -   	  -   	  		 64.47 	  	 -   	  -   		   95.91 
  	 Other financial liabilities		   -   	  -   			   0.71 		   -   	  -   		   0.71 
	 Total		   -   	  -   			   2,240.52 	  -   	  -   	  	 2,195.85 

(b)	 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost :		

	 The carrying amounts of financial assts and liabilities carried at amortised cost are reasonable approximation of 
their fare value.	

(c)	 Fair value hierarchy :			 
All financial instruments for which fair value is recognised or disclosed are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, 
described as follows based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as whole

	 Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices, for example listed equity 
instruments, traded bonds and mutual funds that have quoted prices. 			 
Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation 
techniques that maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. 

xix)	 The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off.	 	
xx)	 Figures are rounded off to nearest Lakh rupee.	 	
xxi)	  Previous year’s figures have been regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary.	
xxii)	 The Company has made the disclosures at appropiates place regardig the relevant items or transactions 

of balance sheet and statement of profit and loss. Any non-disclosure is due to non occurrence of related 
transaction.
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If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable the instrument is included in level 2.	

	 Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included 
in level 3.		
	

The following table presents assets and liabilities measured at fair value at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023:

	 Particulars	  	31st March 2024 			  31st March 2023 		

			  Level 1	 Level 2	 Level 3	 Level 1	 Level 2		  Level 3

Assets for which fair values are disclosed							     
Investment Property	  -   	  -	 -   	  -   	  -   	 	  -   
Financial assets:	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Measured at fair value							     
Financial investments at FVTOCI	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Listed Equity investments	  -   	  -	 -   	 	  -   	    	  -   
Financial assets at amortised cost	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Advances to related parties	  -   	  -	 -   		   -   	    	  -   
Loans to employees 	  -   	  -	 -   	 	  -   	    	  -   
Security Deposits	  -   	  -	  1.15 	 	  -   	  -   	  1.15 
			   -   	  -	 1.15 	 	  -   	  -   	  1.15 
Financial liabilities:	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Measured at fair value							     
Financial liabilities at amortised cost	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Borrowings	  -   	  -   	  -   		   -   	    	  -   
Financial Guarantee Obligation 	  -   	  -   	  -   	 	  -   	    	  -   

There are no transfers among levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.
 

In terms of our report of even date attached. 
For Rajesh Raj Gupta & Associates LLP	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors	
Chartered Accountants		  VIRTUALSOFT SYSTEMS LIMITED		
FRN: 026338N/N50035
CA. Manoj Kumar	 Rajendra V. Kulkarni	 Gokul N Tandan	 Mukta Ahuja	
Partner		  Director 	 Managing Director	 Company Secretary	
Membership No.: 521409	 DIN : 00988255	 DIN : 00441563	 M. No. : 49501
Place : New Delhi		  Athar Ahmad
Date : 	30-05-2024	 	 C.F.O.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of VIRTUALSOFT SYSTEMS LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion
We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial 
Statements of Virtualsoft Systems Limited (“the Company” or 
“the Holding Company”), and its subsidiary (the company and its 
subsidiaries together referred to as the “Group”), which comprise 
the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, the Statement of Profit 
and Loss (including the Other Comprehensive Income), the 
Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of changes in equity 
for the year then ended, and notes to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the 
“Consolidated Financial Statements”). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us, except for the effects of the matter 
described in the point 2(g) of “Other Matter Report on Other Legal 
and Regulatory Requirements as required by the section 143(3) 
of the Companies Act 2013” section of our report, the aforesaid 
Consolidated Financial Statements give the information required 
by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so required 
and give a true and fair view, in conformity with the Accounting 
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with (the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2023) and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of 
affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2024, and its deficit, cash flows 
and changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion
We conducted our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as specified 
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements’ section of 
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the 
‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we 
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the 
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Consolidated Financial 
Statements.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional 
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and 
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have 
determined the 
matters described below to be the key audit matters to be 
communicated in our report.

The key audit matter

Revenue Recognition 

The management is of the opinion that it controls the goods 
before transferring them to the customer. 

The variety of terms that define when controls are transferred to 
the customer, as well as the high value of the transactions, give 
rise to the risk that revenue is not recognized in the appropriate 
accounting period. 

Revenue is measured net of returns and allowances, trade 
discounts and volume rebates (collectively ‘Discount and 
rebates’). 

There is a risk that these discount and rebates are incorrectly 
recorded as it also requires ascertain degree of estimation, 
resulting in understatement of the associated expenses and 
accrual. 

Accordingly, due to the significant risk associated with revenue 
recognition in accordance with terms of Ind AS 115 ‘Revenue 
from Contracts with Customers’, it was determined to be a key 
audit matter in our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures on adoption of Ind AS 115, Revenue 
from contracts with Customers (‘Ind AS 115’), which is the new 
revenue accounting standard, include
• Evaluation of the design and implementation of the processes 

and internal controls relating to implementation of the new 
revenue accounting standard;

• Selection of samples of both continuing and new contracts for 
- testing of operating effectiveness of the internal control 
- identification of contract wise performance obligations and 
- Determination of transaction price.
• Verifying management’s assessment of contractual 

arrangements including those relating to income from 
supplier rebates, terms of contract and commercial 
substance thereof in order to assess the adherence to 
revised accounting policies in light of the requirements of 
Ind AS 115.

• Selecting samples of contractual arrangements, testing 
management’s assessment of the applicability of the 
standard to such arrangements, identification of distinct 
performance obligations and determination of transaction 
prices.

• Additionally, we also evaluated the adequacy of disclosures 
made in the financial statements.
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Emphasis of Matter

	 The group’s net worth has been completely eroded, with a 
net worth of (-) INR 2,364.94 lakh as of 31st March 2024. 
The accumulated losses for the year ending 31st March 
2024 amount to INR 3,394.70 lakh, according to the 
maintained books of accounts. Refer to Notes to Accounts 
No. 43, which states that “there are plans either to add 
other lines of business or to renew existing operations. 
Accordingly, the financial statements have been prepared 
on the basis of the going concern assumption.”

	 Information Other than the Consolidated Financial 
Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

	 The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
preparation of other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Management 
Discussion and Analysis, Director’s Report including 
annexure to Director’s Report included in the annual report 
of the but does not include the Consolidated Financial 
Statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

	 Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does 
not cover the other information and we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

	 In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information identified above when it becomes available 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information 
is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated Financial 
Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course 
of audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

	 If based on the work we have performed, we conclude that 
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we 
are required to report the facts. We have nothing to report 
in this regard.

	 Management’s Responsibilities for the Consolidated 
Financial Statements

	 The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect 
to the preparation of these  Consolidated Financial 
Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial 
position, financial performance, statement of changes in 
equity and cash flows of the Group in accordance with 
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, 
including the Indian Accounting Standards as specified 
under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding 
of the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application 
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for 

ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair 
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error.

	 In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, 
management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either 
intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or 
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

	 The respective Board of Directors are also responsible for 
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

	 Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements

	 Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when 
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they 
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated 
Financial Statements.

	 As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The 
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to 
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of 
the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion 
on whether the group has an adequate internal financial 
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls. 

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management. 

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of 
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the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the 
related disclosures in the Consolidated Financial Statements 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained 
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events 
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as 
a going concern. 

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content 
of the Consolidated Financial Statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Financial 
Statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

	 Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the 
Consolidated Financial Statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions 
of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning 
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results 
of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 
misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

	 We communicate with those charged with governance 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 
during our audit.

	 We also provide those charged with governance with a 
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate 
with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards.

	 From the matters communicated with those charged with 
governance, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements of the current period and are therefore the key 
audit matters. We describe these matters in our Auditor’s 
Report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure 
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 
we determine that a matter should not be communicated 
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing 
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

	 Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 

2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government 
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of 
the Companies Act, 2013, According to the information 
and explanations given to us, and based on the reports, 
issued by the auditors of the subsidiary included in the 
consolidated financial statements of the Company, to which 
reporting on matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the 
Order is applicable, provided to us by the Management of 
the Company and based on the identification of matters 
of qualifications or adverse remarks in their Companies 
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 reports by the respective 
component auditors and provided to us, we report that 
the auditors of such companies have not reported any 
qualifications or adverse remarks in their CARO reports.

	

2.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law 
have been kept by the Group so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books;

(c)	 The group do not have the branch offices as per information 
provided to us hence the reporting on “the report on the 
accounts of any branch office of the group audited under 
sub-section (8) by a person other than the group’s auditor 
has been sent to him under the proviso to that sub-section 
and the manner in which he has dealt with it in preparing 
his report” is not applicable in this case;

(d)	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the 
Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of changes in 
equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the 
books of account;

(e)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial 
Statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards 
as specified under section 133 of the Act;

(f)	 On the basis of the written representations received from 
the directors as on March 31, 2024 taken on record by the 
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as 
on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in 
terms of Section 164(2) of the Act

(g)	 Reporting on the adequacy with respect to the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting of the company 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, According 
to the information and explanations given to us, and based 
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on the reports, issued by the auditors of the subsidiary 
included in the consolidated financial statements of the 
Company, to which reporting on matters of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting of the company and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, provided to us 
by the Management of the Company and based on the 
identification of matters of qualifications or adverse remarks 
in their reports by the respective component auditors 
and provided to us, we report that the auditors of such 
companies have reported qualifications or adverse remarks 
in their internal financial controls.

	 Qualification/Adverse remarks of Internal Financial Controls 
over Financial Reporting

	 In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, 
an adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over 
financial reporting were not operating effectively as at 31st 
March 2024, based on the internal control over financial 
reporting criteria established by the Company considering 
the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India

(h)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the 
Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of 
Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion 
and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the 
Group to its directors during the year is in accordance with 
the provisions of Section 197 of the Act.

(i)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the 
Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended 
in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us:

i.	 The Group does not have any pending litigations as on 
31.03.2024 which would impact its financial position;

ii.	 The Group did not have any long-term contracts including 
derivative contracts for which there were any material 
foreseeable losses.

iii.	 There is no delay in transferring amounts required to be 
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund 
by the Group.

iv.	 (A) The management has represented that, to the best of 
it’s knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced 
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share 
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the group 
to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign 
entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, 
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons 
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 

behalf of the group (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide 
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries; 

(B) 	 The management has represented, that, to the best of 
it’s knowledge and belief, no funds have been received 
by the group from any person(s) or entity(ies), including 
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the group 
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by 
or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) 
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of 
the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 

(C) 	 Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable 
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come 
to their notice that has caused them to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any 
material misstatement. 

v.	 The group has not declared or paid any dividend during the 
year in contravention of the provisions of section 123 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

vi.	 Based on our examination, which included test checks, the 
Company and its subsidiary has used accounting software 
for maintaining its books of account for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2024, which has a feature of recording 
audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated 
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded 
in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we 
did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature 
being tampered with.

vii.	 As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 
11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on 
preservation of audit trail. The Company and its subsidiary 
utilized accounting software with an audit trail (edit log) 
feature, which remained operational throughout the year 
for all recorded transactions and was not tampered with. 
Furthermore, the responsibility for retaining the audit trail in 
accordance with statutory requirements lies with the group.”

For Rajesh Raj Gupta & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
(FRN No.026338N/N500357)

CA. MANOJ KUMAR 
Partner
Membership No. 521409				  
	
UDIN: 24521409BKCRVZ7874

Date: 30-05-2024
Place: New Delhi
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March 24	 In Indian Rupees

CIN : L72200DL1992PLC047931

		  Particulars		 Note	 As at   	 As at  
				    	 31st March 2024	 31st March 2023
	 ASSETS				  
 I	 Non-current assets				  
	 (a)	 Property, plant and equipment	 6	  77.41 	  58.80 
	 (b)	 Intangible Assets	 7	  815.30 	  816.50 
	 (c)	 Intangible Asset under development	 8	  1,087.76 	  1,029.26 
	 (d)	 Right-of-use assets			 
	 (d)	 Financial assets			 
		  (i) Investments	 9	  -   	  -   
	   	 (ii) Loans		  10	  8.17 	  9.63 
	 (f)	 Other non-current assets	 11		
			    		  1,988.63 	  1,914.18 
II	 Current assets			 
	 (a)	 Inventories		 12	  -   	 - 
	 (b)	 Financial assets			 
	   	 (i) Trade receivables	 13	  127.44 	  102.89 
	   	 (ii) Csh and cash equivalents	 14	  36.77 	  54.14 
	   	 (iii) Other bank balances	 15	  21.32 	  2.50 
	   	 (iv) Loans		  10	  19.87 	  19.48 
		  (v) Other financial assets	 16	  0.30 	  1.91 
	 (c)	 Other current assets	 17	  98.98 	  102.10 
					      304.68 	  283.03 
	 TOTAL ASSETS			    2,293.32 	  2,197.22 
	 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES			 
III	 Equity			
	 (a)	 Equity share capital	 18	  1,029.76 	  1,029.76 
	 (b)	 Other equity	 19	  (3,394.70)	  (3,214.13)
		  Total equity			   (2,364.94)	  (2,184.37)
		  Minority Interest		   (435.57)	  (371.87)
				  
	 LIABILITIES			 
IV	 Non-current liabilities			 
	 (a)	 Financial liabilities			 
	   	 (i) Borrowings	 20	  4,640.04 	  4,214.74 
		  (ii) Lease Liabilities			 
	 (b)	 Provisions		  21	  54.72 	  48.38 
				     	 4,694.76 	  4,263.12 
V	 Current liabilities			 
	 (a)	 Financial liabilities			 
	   	 (i) Borrowings	 22	  111.25 	  131.19 
	   	 (ii) Trade payables	 23	  94.79 	  135.10 
	   	 (iii) Lease liabilities			 
	   	 (iv) Other financial liabilities	 24	  1.32 	  2.60 
	 (b)	 Other current liabilities	 25	  188.06 	  218.16 
	 (c)	 Provisions		  21	  3.64 	  3.28 
			    		  399.06 	  490.33 
	 Total liabilities		   	 5,093.83 	  4,753.46 
	 TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES		   2,293.31 	  2,197.22 

Summary of significant Accounting policies	 3	
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements	
In terms of our report of even date attached. 
For Rajesh Raj Gupta & Associates LLP	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors	
Chartered Accountants			 
FRN: 026338N/N50035
CA. Manoj Kumar	 Rajendra V. Kulkarni	 Gokul N Tandan	 Mukta Ahuja	
Partner		  Director 	 Managing Director	 Company Secretary	
Membership No.: 521409	 DIN : 00988255	 DIN : 00441563	 M. No. : 49501
Place : New Delhi		  Athar Ahmad
Date : 	30-05-2024		  C.F.O.
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March, 2024
		  Particulars	 Note No.	 For the year ended  	 For the year ended 
				    	 31 March, 2024	 31 March, 2023

I		  Revenue from operations 	 26	  511.82 	  358.70 
II		  Other income	 27	  2.39 	  0.55 
III		  Total income (I+II)		   514.21 	  359.25 
IV		  Expenses			 
	 (a)	 Cost of raw material consumed			 
	 (b)	 Purchase of stock in trade / services	 28	  227.91 	  262.62 
	 (c)	 Changes in inventories of finished goods,
		  stock in trade and work-in-progress	 29	  -   	  6.99 
	 (e)	 Excise duty on sale of goods			 
	 (f)	 Employee benefit expense	 30	  275.08 	  248.64 
	 (g)	 Finance costs	 31	  9.22 	  10.90 
	 (h)	 Depreciation and amortization expense	 32	  15.79 	  8.33 
	 (i)	 Other expenses	 33	  226.79 	  236.92 
		  Total expense 		   754.79 	  774.40 
V		  Profit before exceptional items and tax (III-IV)		   (240.58)	  (415.15)
VI		  Exceptional items	 34		
VII		  Profit before tax (V+VI)		   (240.58)	  (415.15)
VIII		  Income tax expense			 
	 (a)	   Current tax		   -   	  -   
	 (b)	   Deferred tax 		   -   	  -   
		  Total tax expense		   -   	  -   
IX		  Profit for the year (VII-VIII)		   (240.58)	  (415.15)
		  Less: Share of Minority in Current Year Profits/Loss	  (48.13)	  (155.25)
					      (192.45)	  (259.90)
X		  Other comprehensive income			 
		  Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:			 
		  (i) Remeasurements of post-employment defined benefit obligations	  (3.70)	  3.73 
		  (ii) Change in fair value of FVOCI equity instruments			
		  (iii) Income tax effect			 
		  Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax	  (3.70)	  3.73 
XI		  Total comprehensive income for the year (IX+X)		   (196.16)	  (256.17)
XII		  Earnings per share in Rs.	 40		
		  Basic earnings per equity share 		   (1.90)	  (2.49)
		  Diluted earnings per equity share 		   (1.90)	  (2.49)

	 Summary of significant Accounting policies	 3	
	 The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements			 

CIN : L72200DL1992PLC047931

In terms of our report of even date attached. 
For Rajesh Raj Gupta & Associates LLP	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors	
Chartered Accountants			 
FRN: 026338N/N50035
CA. Manoj Kumar	 Rajendra V. Kulkarni	 Gokul N Tandan	 Mukta Ahuja	
Partner		  Director  	 Managing Director	 Company Secretary	
Membership No.: 521409	 DIN : 00988255	 DIN : 00441563	 M. No. : 49501
Place : New Delhi		  Athar Ahmad
Date : 	30-05-2024		  C.F.O.
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A		  Equity share capital	 Note No.	 Nos.	 Rs. in Laks

	 As at 1st April 2023		  1029.76 	  1029.76 

	 Changes in equity share capital	 18	  -   	  -   

	 As at 31st March 2024		  1029.76	  1029.76 

	 Changes in equity share capital	 18	  -   	  -   

	 As at 31st March 2024		  1029.76	  1029.76 

(B)	 Other equity 				  
	 Particulars	  	 Capital 	 Securities	 Retained	 Capital	 FVOCI	 Total other	
				    Reserve 	  Premium 	 Earnings	 Red. 	 -Equity	 equity
				    Reserve 	   		   Rev.	 instruments 		
				  
Balance as at 31st March 2023	  20.00 	  754.51 	  (3,988.64)	  -   	  -   	  (3,214.13)

Profit for the year	  	 -   	  -   	  (240.58)	  -   	  -   	  (240.58)

Less: Share of Minority in Current Year			    48.13 	  -   	  -   	  48.13 

Less: Other Adjustment				     15.58 			 

Less: Adjustment due to shareholding change			    -   	  -   	  -   	  -   

Other comprehensive income	  -   	  -   	  (3.70)	  -   	  -   	  (3.70)

Total comprehensive income for the year	  -   	  -   	  (180.58)	  -   	  -   	  (180.58)

Equity Dividend including taxes thereon	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   

Adjustment due to consolidation	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   

Balance as at 31st March 2024	  20.00 	  754.51 	  (4,169.22)	  -   	  -   	  (3,394.70)

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March 2024

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements	 	

In terms of our report of even date attached. 
For Rajesh Raj Gupta & Associates LLP	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors	
Chartered Accountants			 
FRN: 026338N/N50035
CA. Manoj Kumar	 Rajendra V. Kulkarni	 Gokul N Tandan	 Mukta Ahuja	
Partner		  Director 	 Managing Director	 Company Secretary	
Membership No.: 521409	 DIN : 00988255	 DIN : 00441563	 M. No. : 49501
Place : New Delhi		  Athar Ahmad
Date : 	30-05-2024		  C.F.O.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March, 2024
		  Particulars	 Note No.	 As at 31	 As at 31	
					     March, 2024	 March, 2023

Cash flow from operating activities			 
Profit after tax 			    (240.58)	  (415.15)
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows : 				  
Depreciation/amortization  		   15.79 	  8.33 
(Profit)/Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 		   0.17 	  -   
Other comprehensive income 		   (3.70)	  3.73 
Provision for employees benefits obligation  		   8.99 	  -   
Interest expense 			    9.22 	  10.90 
Interest income 			    (1.69)	  (0.55)
Operating profit before working capital changes 		   (211.79)	  (392.73)
				  
Movements in working capital: 				  
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables and other liabilities 		   (74.29)	  3.97 
(Decrease)/increase in short-term provisions 		   -   	  0.16 
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivable 		   (24.55)	  (18.39)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories 		   -   	  6.99 
Decrease/(increase) in other bank balances 		   (13.55)	  -   
Decrease/(increase) in  short term loans 		   (0.38)	  (0.27)
Decrease/(increase) in other current assets 		   1.49 	  72.49 

Cash generated from operations 		   (323.07)	  (327.78)
Direct taxes paid 			    -   
Net cash flow from/(used in) operating activities (A) 		   (323.07)	  (327.78)
				  
Cash flows from investing activities 				  
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, including intangible assets, 
capital work in progress 		   (90.80)	  (27.21)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 		   0.20 	  -   
(Decrease)/increase in long-term provisions 		   -   	  1.63 
Decrease/(increase) in long term loans 		   (1.54)	  0.19 
Interest received 			    1.69 	  0.55 
Net cash flow from investing activities (B) 		   (90.44)	  (24.84)
				  
Cash flow from financing activities 				  
Proceeds/(Repayment) of long-term borrowings & lease liabilitie 		  405.37 	  364.62 
Proceeds/(Repayment) of short-term borrowings & lease liabilities 	 -   	  31.07 
 Interest paid 			    (9.22)	  (10.90)
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Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities (C) 		  396.14 	  384.79 
				  
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B +C) 	 (17.38)	  32.17 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 		   54.14 	  21.97 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 		   36.77 	  54.14 
				  
Components of cash and cash equivalents 				  
Cash in hand 			    3.67 	  18.19 
With banks in current account 		   32.39 	  35.24 
Unpaid dividend accounts 		   0.71 	  0.71 
 in deposit accounts 			    -   	  -   
Total cash and cash equivalents [Refer Note No. 16] 		   36.77 	  54.14 
 
Note : The above Cash flow statement has been prepared under the 
	 Indirect method setout in Ind AS-7 ‘Statement of Cash Flow’.				 

	

Summary of significant Accounting policies	 3			 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements				 
	

As per our report of even date

For Rajesh Raj Gupta & Associates LLP	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors	
Chartered Accountants			 
FRN: 026338N/N50035
CA. Manoj Kumar	 Rajendra V. Kulkarni	 Gokul N Tandan	 Mukta Ahuja	
Partner		  Director 	 Managing Director	 Company Secretary	
Membership No.: 521409	 DIN : 00988255	 DIN : 00441563	 M. No. : 49501
Place : New Delhi		  Athar Ahmad
Date : 	30-05-2024		  C.F.O.
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6.	 Property, plant and equipment
	 Particulars	 Furniture	 Office	 Computer	 Vehicles	 P & M	 Total
			  and Fixtures	 Equipments

	 At 31st March 2023	  27.67 	  121.53 	  51.14 	  31.98 	  6.00 	  238.32 
	 Additions	  16.59 	  12.08 	  3.63 	  -   	  -   	  32.30 
	 Gross block opening adjustment*	  -   	  6.25 	  6.30 	  10.52 	  -   	  23.07 
	 Disposals / adjustments	  -   	  -   	  -   	  7.45 	  -   	  7.45 
	 At 31st March 2024	  44.25 	  133.61 	  54.77 	  24.53 	  6.00 	  286.23 
						   
	 Depreciation*						    
	 At 31st March 2023	  11.12 	  105.70 	  41.51 	  20.36 	  0.83 	  179.52 
	 Charge for the year	  3.49 	  5.73 	  4.76 	  1.14 	  0.16 	  15.28 
	 Gross block opening adjustment*	  0.08 	  6.15 	  7.09 	  9.90 	  (0.83)	  22.38 
	 Disposals / adjustments	  -   	  -   	  -   	  7.08 	  -   	  7.08 
	 At 31st March 2024	  14.68 	  117.58 	  53.35 	  24.32 	  0.17 	  210.10 
						   
	 Net Block						    
	 At 31st March 2023	  16.55 	  15.82 	  9.64 	  11.61 	  5.17 	  58.80 
	 At 31st March 2024	  29.57 	  16.03 	  1.43 	  0.20 	  5.83 	  76.13 

7	 Intangible Assests	 Goodwill	 Mobile	 Trade Mark	 Website 	  Total		
	Particulars	  	 Application

				   Software 

	 At 31st March 2023	  768.32 	  47.98 	  0.32 	  12.00 	 828.62 
	 Addition on account of consolidation	  -   	  -   				    -   
	 At 31st March 2024	  768.32 	  47.98 	  0.32 	  12.00 	  828.62 
	 Depreciation* 						    
	 At 31st Mar, 2023	  -   	  2.98 	  0.32 	  8.82 	  12.12 
	 Charge for the year	  -   	  -   	  -   	  1.20 	 1.20 
	 At 31st Mar, 2024	  -   	  2.98 	  0.32 	  10.02 	 13.32 
						   
 	 Net Block 						    
 	 As on 31st March 2023 	  768.32 	  45.00 	  -   	  3.18 	  816.50 
 	 As on 31st March 2024 	  768.32 	  45.00 	  -   	  1.98    	  815.30 

	 Additional information:
	 (1) Goodwill have arisen on account of Consolidation.	

8	 Intangible assets under development
		 Particulars	 CRM Software	 Website under 	 Software under
					    development	 development	 Total
	 At 31st March 2023	  1,008.56 	  0.30 	  20.40 	  1,029.26 

	 Additions	  58.50 	  -   		   58.50 

	 Disposals / adjustments	  -   	  -   		   -   

	 At 31st March 2024	  1,067.06 	  0.30 	  20.40 	  1,087.76 
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9	 Financial assets - Investments
					    As At 31st	 As At 31st
					    March 2024	 March 2023

					    Nil	 Nil

10	 Financial assets - Loans					  
				   As At 31st	 As At 31st		
				   March 2024	 March 2023	

	 (a) Non Current Loans (Unsecured, Considered Good)		
	 Loans to related parties		
	 Security Deposits *		    8.17 	  9.63 
 
	 Loans and advances to employees			 
	 Total Non Current Loans	  	  8.17 	  9.63 
		
	 (b) Current Loans (Unsecured, Considered Good)		
	 Advances to related parties (subsidiary)		   -   	  -   
	 Advances Recoverable 		   -   	  -   
	 Loan and Advances to Employees		    19.87 	  19.48 
 	 Security Deposits		   -   	  -   
	 Total Current Loans		  19.87 	  19.48 
 
	 * Security deposit  includes Electricity, telephone and other deposites.		

11	 Other non-current assets
					    As At 31st	 As At 31st	
					    March 2024	 March 2023	

	 Capital advances (unsecured, considered good)		   -   	  -   
	 Accrued Income		   -   	  -   
	 Prepaid expenses		   -   	 - 
	 Total		   -   	  - 

12	 Inventories
					    As At 31st	 As At 31st	
					    March 2024	 March 2023

	 (valued at lower of cost and net realizable value)		
			  Stock in Trade		
	 Total		   - 	  -   
	 Stock in trade represents the value of ERCV amount and the International roaming cards lying idle with the company. The 

manangement has taken and valued closing stock in trade at the lower of cost and net realizable value and certified that it has 
been physically verified at reasonale interval.	
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13	 Financial assets - Trade receivables 
					    As At 31st	 As At 31st	
					    March 2024	 March 2023	

	 Trade receivables	  	 130.96 	  106.55 
	 Other receivables		   0.08 	  -   
	 Total	  	 131.03 	  106.55 
		
	 Break-up of security details		
	 Secured, considered  good		   -   	  -   
	 Unsecured, considered  good		   127.44 	  85.78 
	 Doubtful 		   3.59 	  20.77 
	 Total		   131.03 	  106.55 
	 Less : Allowance for bad and doubtful debts		   3.59 	  3.66 
	 Total		   127.44 	  102.89 
Note: Trade receivables have been hypothecated with banks against working capital credit facilities of the Company.		

14	 Financial assets - Cash and cash equivalents
					    As At 31st	 As At 31st	
					    March 2024	 March 2023	

	 Balances with banks:		
	 -In current accounts		   32.39 	  35.24 
	 -in unpaid dividend accounts 		   0.71 	  0.71 
	 -Deposits with original maturity of 3 months or less 		   -   	  -   
	 Cash in hand		   3.67 	  18.19 
	 Total	  	 36.77 	  54.14 

15	 Financial assets - Other Bank Balances  					  
				   As At 31st	 As At 31st		
				   March 2024	 March 2023

	 Deposits with original maturity for more than 3 months but not more than 12 months 	  21.32 	  2.50 
	 Total		   21.32 	  2.50 
	
16	 Financial assets - Other Current Financial Assets
					    As At 31st	 As At 31st	
					    March 2024	 March 2023	

	 Interest Accrued on FDR 		   0.30 	  1.91 
	 Total		   0.30 	  1.91 

 
17	 Other current assets 
					    As At 31st	 As At 31st		

				   March 2024	 March 2023
	 Balances with statutory / government authorities		   80.21 	  99.51 
	 Advance to Supplier/Employee		   15.29 	  0.60 
	 Prepaid Expenses		   3.27 	  1.99 
	 Unbilled revenue		   0.20 	
	 Total		   98.98 	  102.10 
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18	 Share capital  
					    As At 31st	 As At 31st		

				   March 2024	 March 2023
	 Authorised share capital				  

15,000,000 (31 March 2019 : 15,000,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each	  	  1,500 	  1,500 
	 Total		    1,500 	 1,500 
	 Issued, Subscribed and fully paid up shares				  

	
	 1,02,97,600 (31 March 2019 : 1,02,97,600) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each, 
	 fully paid up	  	  1,029.76 	  1,029.76 

 	 Add: Forfeited Shares - Amount Originally Paid up		
	 Total	  	  1,029.76 	  1,029.76 
(a)	 Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of reporting period				 

	
	 Particulars	  	As at 31st March 2024 	  	As at 31st March 2023 	
				   No.	 Rs.	 No.	 Rs.
	 Equity Shares at the beginning of the year	  1,02,97,600 	  1,029.76 	  1,02,97,600 	  1,029.76 
	 Add : Shares issued on exercise of preferential 
	 allotment during the year		   -   	 -  

	 Equity Shares at the end of the year	  1,02,97,600 	  1,029.76 	  1,02,97,600 	  1,029.76 
 		 Terms/ rights attached to equity shares					   
	 The company has only one class of equity shares having  par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled 

to one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividends only in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of 
Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

	 In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, 
after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the 
shareholders.					   

(b)	 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
		 Particulars		 As at 31st March 2024    		       As at 31st March 2023				 

		 No.		  % Holding		  No.		 % Holding	
	 (a) Virtual Software and Tranining Private Limited		  37,50,000 	 36.42%		   37,50,000	  	 36.42%
	 (b) Gokul Tandan		  28,66,725 	 27.84%		   28,66,725 		  27.84%
	 Total		  66,16,725 	 64.26%		   66,16,725	  	 64.26%

(c)	 Other details of Equity Shares for a period of five years immediately preceding 31st March 2024
		 Particulars		  As at 31st		  As at 31st		

			  March 2024		  March 2023	
	 - Aggregate number of shares alloted as fully paid up pursuant 
	 to Contract without payment being received In cash		  Nil		  Ni l 	

	- Aggregate number of shares alloted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares	  	 Nil 		   Nil 	
	 - Aggregate number of shares bought back	  	  Nil 	  	  Nil 
	
Note : 19 Other Equity 
			  As at 31st	 As at 31st	

		 March 2024	 March 2023	
 Capital  Reserve	  20.00 	  20.00 

 	  Share Warrant			 
 Securities Premium Reserve	 754.51 	  754.51 

 	  Retained earnings(Net of Deficit in Statement of Profit and Loss)	 (4,169.22)	  (3,988.64)
	 Total	  (3,394.70)	  (3,214.13)
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(i)	 Capital Reserve	 20.00 	 20.00 	
	

(ii)	 Securities Premium Reserve				 
Opening Balance	  754.51	  754.51	

	 Add : Adjustment made on consolidation				 
	Closing Balance	 754.51 	  754.51 

(iii)	 Retained earnings(Net of Deficit in Statement of Profit and Loss)				 
Opening Balance	 (3,988.64)	  (3,732.47)

	 Add : Profit for the year	 (240.58)	 (415.15)
	 Less: Share of Minority in opening Profits	 48.13 	 155.25 
	 Less: Other adjustment	 15.58 		  -   
	 Less: Adjustment due to share change				 

Add : Remeasurement of post employement benefit obligation, net of tax	 (3.70)	 3.73 
	 Less: provisions less made in earlier years				 

Less: Equity Dividend including taxes thereon				 
Closing Balance	  (4,169.22)	 (3,988.64)	

(iv)	 Other Reserves				 
Opening Balance	 -	 -

	 Add : Change in fair value equity instruments measured at FVOCI				 
Closing Balance	 -	 -

  	
Note : 20 Financial liabilities - Non-Current Borrowings 
			  As at 31st	 As at 31st	

		 March 2024	 March 2023

	 Secured Loans			 
		

	 Term Loans from Banks	  6.44 	 12.89 
	 Term Loans from Others	  -   	  2.00 
	 Total (A)	  6.44 	 14.89 	

Unsecured Loans			 
Loans from Directors	 4,633.60 	 4,199.85 

	 Term Loans from Others Relative party			 
Other Loan	 -   	 -   

	 Total (B)	  4,633.60 	 4,199.85 
	 Total Borrowings [C=A+B]	 4,640.04 	  4,214.74 
	 Current Maturities 			 

Non-current	  4,640.04 	 4,214.74 

Note : 21 Provisions 
			  As at 31st	 As at 31st		

		 March 2024	 March 2023

	 Provision for gratuity 	 47.66 	  41.69 
	 Provision for Leave Encashment	 10.71 	 9.97 
	 Total	 58.37 	 51.66 
	 Current	 3.64 	 3.28 
	 Non-current	 54.72 	 48.38 
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Note : 22 Current borrowings 
			  As at 31st	 As at 1st
			  March 2024	 March 2023
	 Secured Loans				 

Working capital facilities from Banks	 111.25 	 131.19 
	 Working capital facilities from Others				 

Unsecured Loans				 
Current Maturity of other loans				 
Bills discounted from Bank				 
Loan from Directors			   -   

	 Loan from Related Parties				 
Total	 111.25 	 131.19 

Note:					 
i) The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of borrowings and interest as at Balance Sheet date.		

Note : 23 Financial liabilities - Trade Payables
			  As at 31st	 As at 31st
			  March 2024	 March 2023

	 Current				 
Total outstanding dues of micro & small enterprises*	 -   	 0.67 

	 Creditors for supplies/services	 30.31 	 39.19 
	 Others	 64.47 	 95.23 
	 Total	 94.79 	 135.10 
	 * In the absence of information about registration of such enterprises under the said Act, the details of dues to Micro 

& Small Enterprises have been furnished to the extent such parties have been identified by the Company based on 
information made available by them. 		

Note : 24 Other financial liabilities				 
		 As at 31st	 As at 31st

			  March 2024	 March 2023

	 Current Maturities of Non-Current Borrowings 			 
Unclaimed Dividend	 0.71 	 0.71

	 Security Deposits	 0.61 	 0.61 
	 Other Payables	 -   	 1.29 
	 Total	 1.32 	 2.60
25 	 Other current liabilities 
			  As at 31st	 As at 31st
			  March 2024	 March 2023

	 Expenses Payable	 -   	 0.69 
	 Audit Fee Payable	 2.25 	 2.84 
	 Salary payable	 35.07 	 30.11 
	 Other liablilities	 140.37 	 141.10 
	 Statutory Dues Payable	 5.96 	 5.63 
	 Advance from Debtors	 4.42 	 37.79 
	 Total	 188.06 	 218.16 
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26	 Revenue from operations	  31st March 2024 	  31st March 2023
	 Sales of Products	  511.82 	  358.70 
	 Total	  511.82 	  358.70 
27	 Other Income	    31st March 2024 	  31st March 2023 
	 Interest Received	  2.39 	  0.55 
	 Interest Income from financial assets carried at amortised cost		
	 Miscellaneous Receipts	 	
	 Total	  2.39 	  0.55 

28	 Purchase of Stock in Trade /Service	    31st March 2024 	  31st March 2023
	 Purchases	  227.91 	  262.62 
	 Total cost of puchase of stock in trade [A]	  227.91 	  262.62 

 29	 Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, 
	 Work-in-Progress and Stock-in-Trade	  31st March 2024 	  31st March 2023
	 Opening Stock of Finished Goods	 -   	  6.99 
	 Less: Closing Stock of Finished Goods		   
	 Total (A)	 -   	  6.99 	

Opening Stock of Work-in-Progress	  -   	 -   
	 Less: Closing Stock of Work-in-Progress			 

Total (B)	 -   	  6.99   
	 Total Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-Progress 
	 and Stock-in-Trade [A+B]	   698,593 	  167,363 
  
30	 Employee Benefit Expenses	    31st March 2024 	  31st March 2023 
	 Director’s Remuneration	  6.00 	  6.00 
	 Salaries, Wages, Bonus and Other Benefits	  253.51 	  229.62 
	 Gratuity	  7.55 	  6.99 
	 Leave Compensation	  2.25 	  2.01 
	 Contribution to Provident and Other Funds	  2.36 	  1.85 
	 Workmen and Staff Welfare Expenses	  3.41 	  2.17 
	 Total	  275.08 	  248.64 
 
31	 Finance Costs	    31st March 2024 	  31st March 2023 
	 Interest Expenses 	  9.22 	  10.90 
	 Other Financial Charges	  -   	  -   
	 Total	  9.22 	  10.90 
32	 Depreciation and amortization expenses	   31st March 2024 	  31st March 2023 
	 Depreciation on Property Plant & Equipment (Read with Note No. 6)	  15.28 	  7.13 
	 Gross block opening depreciation adjustment (Read with Note No. 6)	  (0.68)	
	 Amortisation of Intangible assets (Read with Note No. 7)	  1.20 	  1.20 
	 Total	  15.79 	  8.33 
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33	 Other Expenses	   31st March 2024 	  31st March 2023
	 Advertisement and Publicity	  7.82 	  12.39 
	 Auditors’ Remuneration & Refreshment	  2.95 	  3.00 
	 Advance to supplier written off	  0.40 	  -   
	 Assets written off	  18.23 	  -   
	 Bad Debt Written off	  5.87 	  8.00 
	 Bank Charges	  2.87 	  3.94 
	 Business Promotion	  0.93 	  4.39 
	 Communication Expense	  4.63 	  4.60 
	 Conveyance Expenses	  22.72 	  49.76 
	 Courier & Postage Expenses	  3.98 	  3.56 
	 Custome Clearness Expense	  0.30 	  0.31 
	 Director Sitting Fees	  2.18 	  1.75 
	 Diwali Expenses	  2.96 	  1.86 
	 Domain Charges	  0.87 	  1.44 
	 Electricity & Water Expenses	  1.62 	  1.71 
	 Exchange Flactuation	  -   	  0.58 
	 Fine and Penalty	  0.09 	  0.84 
	 Fees and Subscription	  11.89 	  10.22 
	 Freight & Cartage Outward (Net)	  2.63 	  2.77 
	 Insurance Charges	  2.74 	  2.34 
	 Legal & Professional Fees	  67.39 	  76.59 
	 Loss on sale of assets	  0.17 	  -   
	 Misc. Expenses	  0.07 	  0.05 
	 Other Expense	  -   	  0.09 
	 Power & Fuel Charges	  1.76 	  2.36 
	 Printing & Stationery	  3.98 	  2.47 
	 Provision for bad and doubtful debts	  0.07 	  -   
	 Rates & Taxes	  14.96 	  1.14 
	 Rent & Hire Charges	  21.36 	  15.70 
	 Repair and Maintenance Other Assets	  9.57 	  11.46 
	 Selling Expenses	  4.40 	  4.87 
	 Server Expenses	  3.65 	  6.71 
	 Staff Recruitment Expenses	  2.85 	  1.11 
	 Telephone and Telecommunication Charges	  0.92 	  0.89 
	 Total	  226.79 	  236.92 
 
34	 Exceptional Items	 31st March 2024 	  31st March 2023
	 Profit on Sale of Property, plant and equipment (Net)	  -   	  -   
	 Prior Period Expenses		    
	 Total	  -   	  - 
	 	Payment to auditor	  31st March 2024 	  31st March 2023 
	 i) Audit fees	   1.79 	  0.75 
 	 ii) Fees for income tax matters		
	 iii) Certification charges & others		
	 Total	  1.79 	  0.75 
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 		 *Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses	  31st March 2024 	  31st March 2023 
	 Gross Amount required to be spent by the Company 
	 (as per Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013)	  -   	  -   
	 Amount spent during the year			 

	i) Construction/acquisition of any assets	  -   	  -   
	 ii) On purposes other than (i) above

35 	  Employee benefit obligations 		

 (A) 	 Defined benefit plans			 
	Gratuity:

	 Provision for gratuity is determined by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.”		
The Compay has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service 
gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The scheme 
is funded with Life Insurance Corporation of India in the form of a qualifying insurance policy.	

		 The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit and 
loss and the funded status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the respective plans:	

(i) 	 Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:		
	

	 Particulars 			 
 	 Gratuity Funded 	  Leave Encashment 

	  Defined benefit obligation at 31 March 2023 	 54.77 	  10.35 
	  Interest expense 	 3.22 	  0.75 
 	 Current service cost 	 4.34 	  1.50 
 	 Benefits paid 	 (6.80)	  -   
 	 Actuarial (gain)/ loss 	 5.21 	  (1.51)
 	 Defined benefit obligation at 31 March 2024 	 60.74 	  11.09 

  (ii) 	  The amount to be recognized in the Balance Sheet: 			 
	

	  Particulars 			 
 	 Gratuity Funded 	  Leave Encashment 

	 Net (assets) / liability recognized in balance 
	 sheet as provision as at 31 March 2023	 54.77 	  10.35 
	 Present value of obligation 	  60.74 	  11.09 
	 Fair value of plan assets                       	 -   	  -   
	 Net (assets) / liability recognized in balance sheet 
	 as provision as at 31 March 2024	 60.74 	  11.09 
  (iii) 	 Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss: 			 

	 Particulars 			 
 	 Gratuity Funded 	  Leave Encashment 

	 Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
	  for year ended 31 March 2023	  1.62 	  0.34 
	 Interest Cost	  3.22 	  0.75 
	 Current service cost	 4.34 	  1.50 
	 Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 
	 for year ended 31 March 2024	 7.55 	  2.25 
 (iv) 	  Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income: 			 
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	  Particulars 			 
 	 Gratuity Funded 	  Leave Encashment 

	 Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive 
	 Income for year ended 31 March 2023	  0.23 	  (0.09)
	 Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations	 5.21 	  (1.51)
	 Actuarial (gain)/ loss on plan assets	 -   	  -   
	 Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 
	 for year ended 31 March 2024	 5.21 	  (1.51)
 (v) 	 Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:		
	  Particulars 			 

 	 Gratuity Funded 	  Leave Encashment 
	  Expected return on plan assets 	 -   	  - 
	  Actuarial gain/(loss) 	 -   	  - 
	  Fair value of plan assets at 31 March 2023 	 -   	  - 
	 Expected return on plan assets 	 -   	  - 
	 Actuarial gain/(loss) 	 -   	  - 
	 Fair value of plan assets at 31 March 2024 	 -   	  - 

(vi) 	 The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:		
		

	 Particulars 	  	 31st March, 2024               31st March, 2023
	 Investment Details		  Gratuity	 Gratuity 
	 Investment with Insurer		  0%	 0%
(B) 		 Defined contribution plans 		  31 March 2024 	 31 March 2023	
	 Employer’s Contribution to Provident Fund 		   1.88 	  1.30 
 		 Employer’s Contribution to ESI 		   0.49 	  0.45 
 	 Employer’s Contribution to NPS 		   - 	  - 
 	 Total 		   2.36 	  1.75 
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37	 Segment information		  	
	The Company’s operations predominately relate to Cables and accordingly this is the only reportable segment as 
per Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments”.

	 Geographical Information

	 Particulars			 
		 31st March 2024	 31st March 2023

	 1. Revenue from external customers			 
	

	 - Within India	 454.83 	  358.70 
	 - Outside India	 56.99 	  -   
	 Total revenue per statement of profit and loss	 511.82 	  358.70 
	 The revenue information above is based on the locations of the customers			 

	
	 2. Non-current operating assets	 	

	- Within India	 1,980.46 	  1,904.55 
	 - Outside India	  -   	  -   
	 Total	  1,980.46 	  1,904.55 
	 Non-current operating assets for this purpose consist of property, plant and equipment,CWIP, investment 

properties and intangible assets.			 
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38	 A. Related Party Disclosures:		
	 In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS - 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ the names of the related parties where 

control exists/ able to exercise significant influence along with the aggregate transactions and year end balances 
with them as identified by the management in the ordinary course of business and on arms’ length basis are given 
below:		

(a) 	 Subsidiary Companies :		  	
Roam1 Telecom Limited	

(b)	 Key Management Personnel (KMP):		
		

	 	Mr. Gokul Naresh Tandan	 Director	
	Mr. Rajendra V. Kulkarni	 Director	
Ms Aashima Puri	 Director (Resined 28/08/2023)		
Ms. Geeta Singh	 Director (Appointed on 28/08/2023)	
Mr. Vikram Grover	 Director (Appointed on 12/08/2022)		
Ms. Mukta Ahuja	 Company Secretary		
Mr. Athar Ahmad	 CFO	

(c)	 Enterprises over which KMP/ relatives of KMP exercise significant influence :-			
M/S.HEAL YOUR PAWS PET SERVICES LLP	 Gokul Naresh Tandan is Designated Partner		
M/S GOTO CUSTOMER SERVICES PVT LTD	 Gokul  Naresh Tandan is Director		
M/S VIRTUAL SOFTWARE & TRAINING  PVT LTD.	 Gokul  Naresh Tandan is Director		
M/S ENHANCED COMMUNICATIONS & TECHNOLOGIES PVT LTD 	 Gokul  Naresh Tandan is Director		
M/S ROAM1 TELECOM LIMITED	 Gokul  Naresh Tandan is Director		
M/s. CLOUDCONNECT COMMUNICATIONS PRIVATELIMITED	 Gokul  Naresh Tandan is Director		
M/s.EMPYREAN BEVERAGES PRIVATE LIMITED	 Gokul  Naresh Tandan is Director		
M/s EMPYREAN SPIRITS PRIVATE LIMITED	 Gokul  Naresh Tandan is Director		
M/s Prime Valve  India  LLP.	 Rajendra V Kulkarni is Designated Partner		
M/s M R Capital Pvt. Ltd.	 Rajendra V Kulkarni is Director	
M/s Vijay Stampings  Pvt. Ltd.	 Rajendra V Kulkarni is Director		
	M/s Marble Arch Estate Pvt. Ltd.	 Rajendra V Kulkarni is Director	

	 M/s Virtual Software & Training  Pvt Ltd.	 Rajendra V Kulkarni is Director		
M/s CloudConnect Communications Pvt. Ltd.	 Rajendra V Kulkarni is Director		
M/s Empyrean Beverages Pvt. Ltd.	 Rajendra V Kulkarni is Director		
M/s Roam 1 Telecom Limited	 Rajendra V Kulkarni is Director		
M/S Roam1 Telecom Limited	 Aashima Puri is a Director	
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B.	 Related Party Transactions:				  

	 Particulars	 Subsidiary	 KMP	 Other Related	 Total 
					    Parties		

	
			  2024	 2023		  2024	 2023		  2024	 2023		 2024		  2023
	 Short-term Employee Benefits	  -   	  -   	  	 -   	  -   		   60.51 	  -  	  	 60.51	  	  -   
	 Interest Paid/Payable	  -   	  -   		   -   	  0.14 		   -   	  -   		   -  	  	  0.14 
	 Lease Rent Paid/Payable	  -   	  -   		   -   	  -   		  1.80	 1.80	  	1.80 		   1.80 
	 Interest Received/Receivable	  -   	  -   		   -   	  -   		   -   	  -   	  	 -   	  	 -   
	 Director’s Remuneration	  -   	  -   	  	 6.00 	  6.00 					     6.00 	  	 6.00 
	 Reimbursement of Expenses	  -   	  -  	  	  14.59 	  40.03 		   -   			   14.59 		   40.03 
	 Salary Paid 			    	 19.95 	  17.83 					     19.95 	  	 17.83 
	 Professional Fees	  -   	  -  	  	  0.60 	  -   		  15.00	 21.00		  15.60 		   21.00 
	 Rent Received/Receivable	  -   	  -   		   -   	  -   		   -   	  -   	  	 -   		   -   
	 JobWork Charges Paid/Payable	  -   	  -   	  	 -   	  -   		   -   	  -   		   -   
	 Purchases	  10.50 	  16.50 		   -   	  -   		   -   	  -   		  10.50	  	  16.50 
	 Sales	  10.50 	  16.50 		   -   	  -   	  	 56.99 	  -   	  	67.49 		   16.50 
	 Sale of PPE	  -   	  -   		   -   	  -   		   -   	  -   		   -   		   -   
	 Purchase of PPE	  -   	  -   		   -   	  -   	  	 48.00 	  -  	  	 48.00	   	 -   
	 FINANCE	  -   	  -   		   -   	  -   		   -   	  -   		   -  	  	  -   
	 Unsecured Loans Received				    476.25 	  380.60 		   -   	  		 476.25 	 	 380.60 
	 Unsecured Loans Paid back				     42.50 	  10.00 		   -   			   42.50 		   10.00 
	 Unsecured Loans Received Back	  -   	  -   	  	 -   	  -   		   -   	 -   	  	 -   		   -   
	 Short Term Loans Paid	  -   	  -   	  	 -   	  1.00 		   -   	  -   		  -   		   1.00 
	 Short Term Loans Received Back	  -   	  -   		   -   	  1.00 	  	 -   	  -   		  -   	  	 1.00 
	 Advances Paid	  -   	  -   		   -   	  -   		   -   	  	    	  -   		   -   
	 Advances Received Back	  -   	  -   	  	 -   	  -   	   		   -   	  	   	  	 -   
	 Corporate guarantee given	  -   	  -   		   -   	  -   	    		   -   		    		   -   
	 YEAR END BALANCES							        -   			    -   
	 Expenses Payable 			    	 20.03 	  10.17 			   6.00 	  	20.03 	  	 16.17 
	 Expenses Receivable			    	 0.06 	  					     0.06 		   -   
	 Accounts Recivable							        36.90 			   36.90 	  	 -   
	 Accounts Payable								         4.15 		  -   	  	 4.15 
	 Unsecured Loans Receivable							        -   	  -   
	 Unsecured Loans Payable 				    4,633.60 	  4,201.85 					    4,633.60 	 4,201.85 

	 All transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length 
transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured. For the year ended 31 March 
2024								      
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39	 Detail of loans given, Investment made and guarantee given covered U/s 186(4) of the Companies Act, 	
	 2013								      
		  Particulars					     31st March 2024		 31st March 2023	
	 (a)	 Loan given by the Company for general 
		  business purposes as at balance sheet date :		  -   				    -	
				  
	 (b)	 Corporate guarantee given by the Company as at 
		  balance sheet date :							     
		  For securing the credit facilities sanctioned to 
		  subsidiary company 					     -   		   		  - 

40	 Earnings per share (EPS)	 		
				 
	 Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders of the com-

pany by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.	
	
	 Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to the equity shareholders of the 

company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average 
number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity 
shares.			 

				 
	 The following reflects the profit and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computation:		

	
	 Particulars			 

		 31 March 2024	 31 March 2023

	 Profit for the year	  (196.16)	  (256.17)
	 Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic 
	 EPS (absolute value in number)	  1,02,97,600 	  1,02,97,600 
	 Effect of dilution		
	 Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating diluted 
	 EPS (absolute value in number)	  1,02,97,600 	  1,02,97,600 
	 Earnings per share		
 	 - Basic (on nominal value of Rs. 10 per share) Rs./ share	  (1.90)	  (2.49)
 	 - Diluted (on nominal value of Rs. 10 per share) Rs./ share	  (1.90)	  (2.49)

41	 Leases			 
	Operating Lease			 
	Company as a lessee:			 
			

	 The Company has taken certain vehicles and immovable properties on operating lease. All operating leases en-
tered into by the Company are cancelable on giving notice of one to three months.		

	 Company as a lessor:		

	 The Company has given certain immovable properties on operating lease. All operating leases entered into by the 
Company are cancelable on giving notice of one to three months.		

	 Finance Lease			 
The company does not have any finance lease as at March 31, 2024.			 
		

42	 Contingent liabilities			 
	There are no contingent liabilities as on date of  Balance sheet as there is no pending litigations on/by the company



96

43	 Going Concern Basis					   
The Group has accumulated losses of Rs. 3394.70 Lakhs as at 31st March, 2024 and its net worth as at that date 
is minus  Rs.2364.94 Lakhs Although these events or conditions maybcast significant doubt on the group’s ability 
to continue as going concern, it has detailed plan for renewal of its operations. Accordingly the financial statements 
have been prepared on the basis that the group is a going concern and that adjustment are required to the carrying 
value pof assets and liabilities.                 		                   		

44	 Reconciliation and confirmations				  
	Balances of debtors and creditors and loans and advances to/from parties, security deposits are subject to 
reconciliations and confirmations.			 

45	 Provision for tax					   
In view of the carried forward losses, no provision for current tax have been made during the year. Provision for 
Deferred tax has also not been recognized in the Balance Sheet in view of the fact that there exits no virtual certainty 
supported by convincing evidence that there will be available sufficient future profits against which such deferred tax 
asset can be adjusted.				  

46	 Intangible assets under development					   
The group is developing a CRM software called Live Webcast Suite for providing telecom services and a Website. 
No amount has been capitalized during the year. The management is of the opinion that since the process is still 
going on & hence no amortization is required during this year			 

47	 Corporate Social Responsibilty					   
As per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, NIL amount is payable towards CSR expenses based on the loss 
for the period. Therefore, no Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) committee has been constituted by the group.	

48	 Other Disclosures					   
The MCA vide notification dated 24th March 2021 has amended Schedule III to the Companies Act. 2013 in respect of 
certain disclosures which are applicable from 1st April 2021. The group has incorporated the changes as per the said 
amendment in the financial statements and below disclosures are made in compliance of the said amendment:	

i) 	 The group has not received any Government Grants during the year			 
ii) 	 As at year end, there was amount of Rs. NIL due to any small scale industrial undertaking		
iii) 	 The group has not traded or invested in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during the period.		
iv) 	 The group do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the group 

for holding any Benami property.			 
v) 	 The group do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory 

period.			 
vi) 	 The group have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign 

entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:			 
	 (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf 

of the group (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or					   
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries		

vii) 	The group have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) 
with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the group shall:			 
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf 
of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 					   
(b)  provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.	

viii)	The group does not have any loans and advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMP and other 
related parties.		

ix)	 The group does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been subsequently 
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year as part of the on going tax assessments under the Income Tax 
Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).	

x)	 The group has not been declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any 
government authority.			 
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xi)	 The group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.		
xii)	 The group do not have any title deeds of immovable properties not held in name of the group.		
xiii	 The group does not have any investment property.			 
xiv)	The group is not required to submit statement of current assets with the bank and therefore reconciliation of the 

statement filed by the group with bank and the books of accounts is not applicable.	
xv)	 The group has not revalued any item of property, plant and equipment.			 
xvi)	The group does not have any transactions where the group has not used the borrowings from banks and financial 

institutions for the specific purpose for which it was taken at the balance sheet date		
xvii)	The group have not entered into any scheme(s) of arrangements in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 during the financial year.			 
xviii)	The group has no borrowings from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets.	
xix)	The group does not have any transactions with companies struck off.		
xx)	 Figures are rounded off to nearest Lakh rupee.			 
xxi)	 Previous year’s figures have been regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary.			 

The group has made the disclosures at appropiates place regardig the relevant items or transactions of balance 
sheet and statement of profit and loss. Any non-disclosure is due to non occurrence of related transaction.		
				  

49		 Financial Instruments measurements and disclosures		

(a)	 Financial instruments by category :	

	 Particulars		  31st March 2024 	 31st March 2023 	
					   FVTPL 	  FVTOCI 	  Amortised 			   FVTPL 	 FVTOCI		 Amortised		

 					     Cost 	  					     Cost 		
	Financial Assets											         

	 Non-current							     
  	 Investment		   -   		   -   	  -   			    -   		   -   	  -   
  	 Loans		   -   		   -   	  8.17 			    -   	  -   	  9.63 
	 Current							     
  	 Trade receivables		   -   		   -   	  127.44 			    -   	  -   	  102.89 
  	 Cash and cash equivalents		   -   		   -   	  36.77 			    -   	  -   	  54.14 
  	 Other bank balances		   -   		   -   	  21.32 			    -   	  -   	  2.50 
  	 Loans		   -   		   -   	  19.87 			    -   	  -   	  19.48 
	 Total		   -   		   -   	  213.57 			    -   	  -   	  188.65 
	 Financial liabilities							     
	 Non-current							     
  	 Borrowings		   -   		   -   	  4,640.04 			    -   	  -   	  4,214.74 
  	 Other Financial Liabilities		   -   	  	 -   	  -   			    -   	  -   	  -   
	 Current								      
  	 Borrowings		   -   		   -   	  111.25 			    -   	  -   	  131.19 
  	 Trade payables		   -   		   -   	  94.79 			    -   	  -   	  135.10 
  	 Other financial liabilities		   -   		   -   	  -   		   	 -   	  -   	  -   
	 Total		   -   		   -   	  4,846.08 			    -   	  -   	  4,481.02 
 
(b)	 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost :	 				  

The carrying amounts of financial assts and liabilities carried at amortised cost are reasonable approximation of 
their fare value.

(c)	 Fair value hierarchy :											         
	 All financial instruments for which fair value is recognised or disclosed are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, 

described as follows based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as whole.				  
		

	 Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices, for example listed equity 
instruments, traded bonds and mutual funds that have quoted prices. 							     
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	 Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation 
techniques that maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. 
If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable the instrument is included in level 2.				  
							    

	 Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included 
in level 3.	

The following table presents assets and liabilities measured at fair value at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2024:		
			

	 Particulars	  	31st March 2024 			  31st March 2023 		

			  Level 1	 Level 2	 Level 3	 Level 1	 Level 2	 Level 3

Assets for which fair values are disclosed							     
Investment Property		   -   	 -   	  -   		   -   	  		  -   	  -   
Financial assets:							     
Measured at fair value							     
Financial investments at FVTOCI							     
Listed Equity investments	  	 -   	  -   	  -   		   -   			    -   	  -   
Financial assets at amortised cost							     
Advances to related parties		   -   	  -   	  -   		   -   	  		  -   	  
Loans to employees 	  	 -   	  -   	  -   		   -   	  		  -   	  
Security Deposits		   -   	  -   	  8.17 		  -   	  		  -   	  9.63 
				    -   	  -   	  8.17 		   -   	  		  -   	  9.63 
Financial liabilities:							     
Measured at fair value							     
Financial liabilities at amortised cost							    
Borrowings		   -   	  4,751.29 	  -   		   -   	  	 4,345.92 	  -   	 -
Financial Guarantee Obligation 	  	 -   	  -   	  -   		   -   		   -   	  -   	 -
				    -   	  4,751.29 	  -   		   -   		   4,345.92 	  -   	 -

There are no transfers among levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.		
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